Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Statutory audit for the year ended

31 March 2017



B SR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Building No.10, Bth Floor, Tower-B Telephone: +91 124 719 1000
DLF Cyber City, Phase - i Fax: + 91124 2358613
Gurugram - 122 002, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEWGEN SOFTWARE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Newgen Software Technologies
Limited (“the Company™). which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Statement of
Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policics and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements’™ ).

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act. 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view ol the financial position, financial performance and cash tlows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting trauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance ot adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are tree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provisions ot the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which
are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor constders internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
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fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors. as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the standalone financial statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sutficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
aftairs of the Company as at 31 March 2017, its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (*Order’), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section {1 1} of section 143 of the Act, we enclose in “Annexure A”, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)  Wc have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b}  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as 1l appears from our examination of those books;

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d)  Inour opinion, the atoresaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014,

(¢)  On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2017 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

()  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating ettectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”; and

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given 10 us:

i. The Company did not have any pending litigations which would materially impact its financial
position:

ii. The Company did not have any foreseeable losses on long term contracts and had no derivative
contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2017;

1i. The Company did not have any dues on account of Investor Education and Protection Fund; and
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iv. The Company has provided requisite disclosures in its standalone financial statements as to
holdings as weli as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016
to 30 December 2016, Based on our audit procedures and relying on the management
representations. we report that the disclosures are in accordance with the books of account
maintained by the Company. Refer note 42 to the financial statements.

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: [ 16231 W/W-1(0024

o

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurgaen Partner

Date: Iy June 0} Membership No.: 092212
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of Newgen Software
Technologics Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017,

{ai

ih)

(a)

The Compans has maintained proper records showing full particulars. including guantitative
details and siuation of Tixed assets.

The Cospany has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all
fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. [n accordance with
this programme. fixed assets at certain locations were verified by the management during the
vear. In our opinion. this periodicity of physical verification is reascnable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
o the records of the Company, the title deeds and lease deeds of the immovable property is
ficld in the name of the Company except for a land transferred from subsidiary pursuant 10 its
merger inte the Company as mentioned below:

| No.o i‘])FJ pE't}' Type of property Gross block Net block
e . (Rs. Lakhs) (Rs. Lakhs)
i One  Treehold land 0.43 043

Subscquent to the balance sheet date, the property has been transferred in the name of Newgen
Software Technotogies Limited.

The Conmpany 1s a service Company. prunaridy engaged i the business of soltware product
devefopment including designing and delivering end-to-end software solutions covering
the entire spectrurin of software services from  workflow  antomation 1o document
management to lmaging, Accordingly, it does not hold any physical inventories at the end of
the vear, Thus. paragraph 3(1) of the Order is not applicable.

‘The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to Cempanies, limited liabitity
partnerslups. firms or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of the
Companies Act. 2013, Accordingly, para 3(iii) of the Order is not appiicable.

The Company has not given any loans, or made any investments, or provided any guarantee.
or security as specitied under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act. 2013. Accordinglv.
para 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits as menitened m the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
al section 73 10 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under.

The Central Govermment has not preseribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
scetion (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of the activities carried out by
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records ol the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
ol undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees” State Insurance, lncome-
tax. Sales tax. Service tax, Duty of customs, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory
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(b)

dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company does not have any dues on account
of Duty of excise.

According 1o the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax,
Duty of customs, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31 March 2017 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income tax,
Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of customs and Value added tax which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. As explained above, the Company
does not have any dues on account of duty of excise.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans/borrowings to banks. Further, there were no dues
payable to financial institutions, government or debenture holders during the year or
outstanding as at 31 March 2017.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and the term loans were applied for the purposes for which those

were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the
Company in accordance with provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies

Act, 2013,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no transactions with the related parties which are not
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been
disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements, as required, by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph

3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
/
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{(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be
registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration no.: 116231 W/W-100024

>

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: |4 Jung 2OV Membership No.: 092212
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the standalone financial statements
of Newgen Software Technologies Limited for the year ended 31 March 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financiat reporting of Newgen Software Technologies
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of [nternal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the ICA]. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, issued by the ICAL

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116231 W/W-100024

LW

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: \4 Jung 0\¢ Membership No.: 092212



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unfess otherwise stated}

As at As at
Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' funds
Share capital 3 6,338.31 6,309.4}
Reserves and surplus 4 20.869.95 15,916.80
27,208.26 22,226.21
Non-current liabilities
Long-term provisions 5 1,442.97 1.121.58
Other long-term liabilities [ 1,024.26 1,316.91
2,467.23 2,438.49
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 7 522618 5.883.19
Trade payables 8

- Towal outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises - -

- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,714 35 1,405.21
Other current liabilities 9 6,467 .67 507717
Short-term provisions 5 233.67 965.65

13,641.87 13,331.22
Total 43,317.36 37 !995. 92
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Fixed assets:

Tangible assets 10 5,364.54 5,528.99

Intangible assets 11 70.44 103.01

Capital work-in-progress 12 1,108.30 604.62
Non-current investments 13 885.14 707.80
Deferred tax assets {net) 14 1,012.54 854,60
Long-term loans and advances 15 1,272.28 1,176,23
Other non-current assets 16 155.24 157 87

9,568.48 9,133.12

Current assets

Current investments 17 4.824.28 4.501.67

Trade receivables 18 22.526.28 19438 35

Cash and bank balances 19 2,801.67 200995
Short-term loans and advances 15 687.82 S507.64

Other current assets 16 2.608.83 2.405.19
33,448.88 28,862,80

Total 43,317.36 37,995.92

Significant accounting policies 2

The notes referred to above form an integrat pant of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For BS R & Associates LLP

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

% MAV\ L‘Kj
Diwakar Nigam T.S.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta man Mourya

Whole Time Direclor  Chief Financial Officer
DIN: 00263115

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-100024

AN

Rakesh Dewan
Partner Managing Director
Membership No.: 092212 DIN: 00263222

Company Secretary
Membership No: 27299

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

Place; New Delhi
Date: |4 June 2017

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 14 June 2017



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2017 3] March 2016
Revenne
Revenue from operations 20 38.311.41 31,280.57
Other income 2l 666.45 267.57
Total revenue 38I977.86 3!1548.14
Expenses
Employee benefits 22 18,596.66 16,346.45
Finance costs 23 461.02 340.44
Depreciation and amortisation 24 473.80 431.74
Other expenses 25 13,137.50 11,025.87
Total expenses 32|668.99 ZBIIM.SD
Profit before tax 6,308.88 3,403.64
Current tax 1,540.63 808.65
MAT credit entitlement - (74 85)
Tax expense for earlier years 126.24 69.73
Deferred tax (eredit) (157.94) (256.06)
Profit after tax for the year 4,79%.95 2,856.17
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 per share) 30
Basic earming, per share 992 5.68
Diluted eaming per share 9.65 4.81
Significant accounting policies . 2
The notes referred 1o above fonn an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached
tir BS R & Associates LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Firm Registration No.: 116231W / W-1 00024
/
KIXW prn
/ k
Rakesh Dewan Diwakar Nigam T.8.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta man Mourya
Partner ’ Managing Director Whole Time Director  Chief Financial Company Secrelary
Membership No.: 092212 DIN; 00263222 DIN: 00263115 Officer Membership No: 27299
Place: Gurgaon Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi Place: New Dethi Place: New Delhi

Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017



Newgen Sofiware Technologies Limited
Cash Now statement for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For fhe year ended
31 March 2016

A. Cash flow from opernting aclivities:
Net profit before tax 6,308.38 3,403.64
Adpuspenis for:
Depreciation and amertisation 473.80 43174
Nel loas on sale/retirement of fixed assels [a) 12.20
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,278.3¢ 632.03
Loans and advances written ofT €55 337
Bad debts written off - 18.56
Provision for loans and advances - 219
Employee stock compensation expense - 498
Diminution in market value of current investments 6.29 2518
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 130,52 (83.18)
Excess liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back - -
Finance costs 461 02 34044
ividend income from mutual funds (L75) (5.42)
Tuterest income from government bonds (3511 -
Profit on sale of mutual funds {589.839) (18%.40)
Inierest income from bank deposits (24.17) (29.55)
Operating profil before working capital changes 801515 4,574.78
Adjustments for working capitel chenges:
Increase in trade payables 323.94 144 87
Increase/(decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities 1,270.31 (610.09)
Incrense 1n long-term and short-term provigions 365.20 401 6%
{Increase) in trade receivables (4,692.31) (2,665.70)
{Increase)/decrease in fong-term and short-lerm loans and advances (328.20) 58.44
{Increase) in other current assets and non-current assets (226.04) (770.15)
(Cush generated from operating activities 4,728.07 1,133.83
Income tax paid (net of refund) (1,621.43) {1,648.58)
Net cash generated from eperating activities 3,106.64 {514.75}
B. Cush flow from investing aclivities:
Purchase o construction of fixed assets (tangible and intangible fixed assets and capital work-in-
progress) and capital advances (%49.41) (571.64})
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 202 5.55
Investment in subsidiary Company (177.34) -
Purchase of mutual funds and govemment bonds (8,680.25) (2.180.65)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds £,942.99 3,781.40
Imterest income from government bonds 28.06 542
Interest income from bank deposits 1219 17.23
Investment in bank deposits {net) 24.08 {18.49)
Net cash (used in) investing activities {777.66) 1,038.82
C. Cash Mow from financing activities:
{Repayment of¥proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) (485.49) 1,387.94
Loan repaid by Newgen ESOP Trust 182.10 16,50
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend distribution tax) (775.78) (,163.11)
Fsnance cost (467.02) (292.15)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (1,546.19) (47.82)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 782,79 476.26
Amount transfesred consequent 1o amalgamation of subsidiary {refer note 38) - 6.68
Eect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency 893 (13.20)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2.009.95 1,540 21
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,801.67 ZIDM.')S

Notes 10 cash Now statement:
1 Cash and cash equivalents a1 the end of the year consist of the following.

As al Asal
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Cash on hand 6.26 452
Balances with banks 1,995 41 2.005 43
Fixed deposit 200,00 -
2,801.67 2,003.95

2 The above cash flow statement has been prepared m accordance with the ‘Indirect Method' specified in Accounting Standard 3, Cash Flow Staterments, as per
Accounting Standaeds specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Significant accounting policies
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial stalements
As per our repont of ¢ven date atached

for BS R & Associates LLP
(Chariered Avcountamy
Firm Registrauon No.: 11623 1W / W-100024

For and on behalf of the Boand of Direciors of
Newgen Software Techaologies Limited

Jiw poNof

T.S.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta
Whole Time Directar Chiel Financial
DIN- 00263115 Officer

Place. New Delhi
Date. 14 June 2017

«r///[}
Rakesh Dewan Diwakar Nigam ?

Panner Managing Director
Membership No.: 092212 DIN- 00263222

man Mourya
Company Secretary

Membership No: 27299

Place’ New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

Plage: Gurgaon
Date: 14 June 2G17

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

Place New Delhi
Date” 14 June 2017



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘Newgen’ or the ‘Company’) is a global
software Company and is engaged in the business of software product development including designing and
delivering end-to-end software solutions covering the entire spectrum of sofiware services from Workflow
Automation to Document Management to Imaging. Newgen provides a complete range of software that helps
automate business processes. Newgen’s solutions enable document intensive organizations /industries such as
Finance and Banking, Insurance and Government Departments to improve productivity through better document
management and workflow implementation,

Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepled Accounting Principles Indian
{GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Indian GAAP primarily comprises of mandatory
accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act’) read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncement issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Current - Non Current classification
All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as per Company normal accounting cycle.
Assels

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating
cycle;

2) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

4) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current {inancial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfics any of the following criteria:

1} it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

2} itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

4) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
afier the reporting date, Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its
settlement by the issue of equity [nstruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management 1o make estimales and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Examples of such estimates include relative fair value of goods and services provisions of future
obligation under employee retirement benefit plans, estimated useful life of fixed assets, provision for doubtful
debts and loans and advances and provision for income-tax. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any
revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

d)  Tangible fixed assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible fixed assets (except freehold land which is carried at cost) are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost of acquisition includes freight inward, duties, taxes
and other directly attributable expenses incurred to bring the assets to their working condition for its intended
use, any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed assets are added to its book value only il they
increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Tangible fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.

€) Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets comprising of computer softwares, are stated al cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization and impairment loss, if any. Intangible fixed assets are capitalized where they are expected to
provide future enduring economic benefits. Capitalization costs include license fees and cost of
implementation/system integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in which the software is fully
implemented for use.

) Depreciation and amortisation

The management has determined the estimated useful lives of the assets based on the consideration of useful lives
as prescribed under part C of Schedule II of the Act and the period over which the Company expects to derives
estimated economic benefits from the use of such assets. The estimated useful lives of asset determined in current
year is as follows:

Category of fixed assets Estimated useful life (Years)

Tangible assets

Building 60
Leasehold improvements # 3
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment* 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8

Computers hardware

- Server and networks 6

- Computers* 3-5

Intangible assets
Computer software 3-4

* For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation, management believes that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects o use these assets.
Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule If
of the Act.

# Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease terms of the respective
whichever is lower.
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g)

h)

i)

The Company is depreciating all tangible and intangible assets on straight line method (SLM) over the estimated
useful life of each asset as determined by the management. Leasehold land is amortized over lease period i.e. 90

years.

Impairment of assets

The management assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that a fixed asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs
to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term
investments. However, that part of long term investments which is expected to be realised within 12 months
after the reporting date is presented under ‘current assets’ in consonance with the current/ non-current
classification as per the Schedule 111 of the Act.

Long-term investments (including current portion thereof) are carried at cost less any other-than-temporary
diminution in value, determined separately for each individual investment. Current investments are carried at the
lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately in respect of each category
of investments i.e. mutual funds, bonds etc.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised on transfer of title to the customer, which
generally coincides with delivery of licence to the customer.

When a fixed price sales arrangement contains multiple-elements, such as sale of licenses for software products,
implementation services and other services, revenue for each element is based on revenue arrangements in which
a customer may purchase a combination of its services. Revenue from multiple- element arrangements is
recognized, for each respective element, based on (1) the attainment of the delivery criterion; (2) its fair value,
which is determined using the selling price hierarchy of vendor-specilic objective evidence (“VSOE™) of fair
value, third-party evidence or best estimated selling price, as applicable, and (3) its allocated selling price, which
is based on the relative sales price method except where fair value of delivered component is not determinable
residual method is fellowed.

The revenues from fixed price contracts for software development is recognized based on proportionate
completion method and foreseeable losses on the completion of contract, if any, are recognised immediately.

Revenue with respect to time and material contracts is recognized, as related services are performed on a man
month basis.

Revenue from digitization services is recognized as services are rendered to the customer.

Revenue from annual technical service and mainlenance contracts is recognised on a pro rata basis over the
period in which such product up gradation and services are rendered.

Software-as-a-Service (8aa8), that is, a right to use software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure
provided by Company. Revenue is recognized monthly/periodically based on the number of users right given to
customers

Amounts received or billed in advance of services performed are recorded as advance from customers/unearned
revenue. Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in
accordance with contract terms.
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Revenues are reported net of service tax and applicable discounts and allowances. Reimbursements of out-of-
pocket expenses received from customers have been netted off with expense.

i Other income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Dividend from investments is recognized when right to receive the payment is established and when no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists.

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the
difference between the sales price and the carrying value of the investment.

k) Trade receivables

The Company maintains provision for doubtful debts for estimated losses inherent in its trade receivable
portfolio. In establishing the required provision, management considers historical losses adjusted to take into
account current market conditions and its customers’ financial condition, the amount of trade receivables in
dispute and the current ageing and current payment patterns. Trade receivable account balances are charged off
against the provision after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is
considered remote.

1) Foreign exchange transactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at
the Balance Sheet date are translated at the exchange rates on that date and the resultant exchange differences are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency, i.e.,
investments, are carried at historical cost and are stated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

The financial statements of an integral foreign operations {Dubai branch operations) are translated into Indian
rupees as if the transactions of the foreign operations were those of the Company itself,

m)  Operating leases

Assets acquired under leases other than finance leases are classified as operaling leases. The total lease rental
(including scheduled rental increases) in respect of an asset taken on operating lease are charged to the Statement
of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern of the benefit.

n} Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A provision is recognised when as a result of past events, the Company has a present obligation, that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are recognized at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated
reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of
resource is remote.

in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

>~ B’
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o) Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits
All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short- term

employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus etc. are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Company’s provident fund is a defined contribution plan under which the Company makes specified
monthly contribution towards employee provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. Present value of obligations under such defined benefit
plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected Unit
Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
cntitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The cbligation is measured at the
present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of
obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance
Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains or losses on the
curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Other long term benefits

The obligation in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
an independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises cach period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the
final obligation. The obligation is measured at the present value of estimated future cash flows. The discount
rates used for determining the present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market
vields on Government bonds as at the Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of
related obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1)) Employee share based compensation

The Company calculates the employee stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method wherein
the excess of fair value of underlying equity shares as on the date of the grant of options over the exercise price
of the oplions given to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company, is regarded as
employee compensation expense and recognised on a graded vesting basis over the vesting period in accordance
with the "Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Company has set up a trust to administer the ESOP Plan under which
options have been granted to employees.

q) Segment accounting policies

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied
to record revenue and expenditure in individual segments. The accounting policies in relation to segment
accounting are as under:

i) Segment assets and liabilities

All scgment assets and liabilities have been allocated to the various segments on the basis of specific
identification. Segment assets consist principally of fixed assets, capital work in progress, trade receivables,
loans and advances and service income accrued but not billed. Segment assets do not include unallocated
advance tax. deferred tax assets and other assets not specifically identifiable with a segment.

Segment liabilities include sundry creditors, other liabilities and staff benefits. Segment liabilities do not include
share capital, reserves and surplus, provision for income tax and other liabilities not specifically identifiablg
a segment,
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ii) Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue and expenses are directly altributable to the segment and have been allocated to various
segments on the basis of specific identification. Segment revenue does not include interest income and
miscellaneous income in respect of non-segmental activities. Segment expenses do not include depreciation on
unallocated corporate fixed assets, finance costs, tax expensc and other expense in respect of non- segmental
activities.

jii) Unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses

Certain assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the
underlying services are used interchangeably. The Company believes that it is not practicable to provide segment
disclosures relating to such assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and accordingly such assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenscs are separately disclosed as ‘unallocated’.

r} Taxation

Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the
income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between
accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered {rom) the taxation authorities, using the
applicable tax rates and tax laws. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between taxable
income and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or
more subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and
assels are recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the
assets can be realised in future; however, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under
taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is a virlual certainty supported by convincing
evidence that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect
the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as the case may be) to be realised.

Minimum Alternative Tax {‘MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current
tax in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised
as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability.
MAT credit recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the
aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

s) Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per equity share in accordance with Accounting
Standard 20, "Earnings Per Share" specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The basic earnings / (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net
profit / (loss) attributable to equity sharcholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year, Dilutive earnings per share is computed and disclosed after adjusting the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares, if any, except when the results will be anti-dilutive.

t) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances/deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number Amount Number Amount
of shares (Rs. in lakhs) of shares (Rs. in lakhs)
) Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 6,44,00,000 6,440.00 6,30,50,000 6,308.00
Equtty share capital with differential voting rights of Rs. 10 each 200 0.02 200 0.02
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1,19,99,800 1,199.98 1,19,99,800 [,199.98

7164|00|000 7,640.00 7,50,50,000 7,505.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up

Al the bepinning of the year 5,40,13, 800 5,401.38 5,40,13,800 5.401.38
Add: Preference shares conversion to equity shares during the year 1,02,94.230 1,029.42 - -
Al the end of the year 6,43,08,030 6,430 80 5,40,13,800 5,401.38
Less Recoverable from Newgen ESCP Trust (refer note 31) 9,25,000 92,50 12,14,048 12t.40
6,33,83,030 6,338.30 %,27,99,752 5,279.98

Equity share capital with Differential voting rights (DVR) of Rs, 10

each, fully paid up

Al the beginning of the year 120 0.01 120 0.01
Al the end of the vear 120 0.01 120 0.01

0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each, fully

paid up

Al the beginuing of the year 1,02,94,230 1,026.42 1,02,94 230 1,029.42
Less: Preference shares conversion to equity shares during the year 1,02.94,230 1,029.42 - -
At the end of the year - - 1,02,94,230 1,029,42

6,33.83.150 633831 6,30.94.102 6,309.41

3(a) Terms/rights attached to equity shares
The Company has two classes of equity shares i.e. equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share and equity shares with differential voting rights having par

value of Rs 10 per share.

Equity shares:

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are
cligitie 1o receive the remaining assets of the Company afier distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective shareholding.

Equity shares with differential voting rights :
In case of cquity shares with differential voting rights, each of the sharcholders holding DVR were emitled to such differential voting rights as speeified below:

Shareholder(s) No. of DVR No. of votes*
Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent India Fund 11 {referred as 'Ascent’) 60 53,775,952
1DG Ventures India Fund 1 LLC {referred as '1DGVI) 60 27,56,898

Each of the shareholder with differential voting rights shall, at all times up to the conversion thereof, are entitled to a fixed preferential and cumulative dividend
of one-hundredth percent (0.01%) of the investment amount and resolved to be so distributed as such dividend in respect of each financial year or other
accounting period of the Company, in accordance with applicable law. In addition, the Ascent DVR and the IDG VI DVR shall be entitled to participate in any
distribution of the profits of the Cempany (including, as regards any dividends declared) on a pro-rata share and as-if-converted basis vis-a-vis the other
shareholders.

*Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer - note 3{c)}

Expiration of dilferential rights:

Pursuant to the sharehelder subscription agreement dated 31 October 2013, each Ascent DVR and an IDGVI DVR shall be compulsorily converted at no cost to
the Investors, into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 at any time as may be detenmined by the investors in their sole discretion, Upon conversion of the Ascent DVR
and the IDGVI DVR | such differential voting and dividend riglus, as mentioned above, on the shares held by each of the investors shall amomatically expire.
Subsequent thereto, the investors, as a holder of the Equity shares shall have the right to vote pro-rata to their respective shareholding on a fully diluted basis. In
the event of a part conversion of the Ascent DVR and the IDG VI DVR, the differential voting and dividend rights shall be reduced proportionately to ensure that
such rights automaticatly apply only to the shareholding percentage represented by the unconverted Ascent DVR and the IDGVI DVR.

During the FY 2016-17, pursuant 1o the Articles of Asscciation and shareholders agreement, these compulsorily convertible preference shares have been
converted into equity shares, at no cost to the investors, in the ratio of |:1 and accordingly all the differential voting and dividend rights have expired on
27 March 2017, Subsequent thereto, inveslors, as holder of equity shares shall have the right to vote pro-rata to their respective sharcholding on a Fulky diluted
basis.
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3(b) Terms/rights attached to preference shares

3c)

During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2009, the Company had issued 1,014,785 compulsorily convertible preference shares (hereinafier referred
to as “CCPS™) of Rs. 10 each fully paid up to HAV2 (Mauritius) Limited and 360,250 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up 1o SAPYV (Mauritius). During the
financial year 2013-14, HAVZ (Mauritius) Limited, exited from the Company and two new investors namely Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services
Limited, A/C Ascent India Fund [1 ("Ascent™) and IDG Ventures India Fund II LLC {"[DGVI") made investment in the Company, During the year ended 31
March 2014, all the CCPS held by HAV2 (Mauritius} Limited, were acquited by Ascent (670,790 CCPS} and IDGV1 (343,995 CCPS). Further, during the year
ended 2014-15, the Company has also allotted 225,192 number of CCPS to Ascent and 115,478 number of CCPS to IDGVI.

Pursuant to Shareholders agreement executed on 31 October 2013, between Newgen Software Technologies Lid and Ascent, IDGVI, SAPY {Mauritius)
(individually referred as investor and together referred to as investor group), Newgen Employees Trust and Mr, Diwakar Nigam, Mr. T.S. Varadarajan, Mrs.
Priyadarshini Nigam and Mrs. Usha Varadarajan, and Share purchase cum Subscription agreement dated 31 Qctober 2013, between Newgen Software
Technologies Ltd, Ascent, IDGVI, SAPV {Mauritius), Mr. Diwakar Nigam, Mr. T.8. Varadarajan, Mrs. Priyadarshini Nigam and Mrs. Usha Varadarajan, the
investor group were entitled to receive dividends in preference to any dividends on the equity shares of the Company at the rate of 0.01% (Zerc point Zero One
Per cent) per annuim on the investors subscription consideration, pro rata en a fully diluted basis, However, all the preferential dividend and differential voting
rights have already been expired due to conversion of CCPS into Equity.

Each CCPS shall be compulsorily converted al no cost 1o the Investor, into Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 at any time as may be determined by the Investor al
their sole discretion. Subject 1o applicable Law, the conversion of the Shares and the HAVZ2 (Mauritius) Limited Sale of Shares will take place within the
maximum time period prescribed under applicable Law for such conversion.

Conversion of Compulsory convertible preference shares inte equity

Pursuant to the Shareholders Agreement executed on 31 Oclober 2013 as aforsaid, during the current year, all issued 10,294,230 CCPS of Rs.10/- each have
been converted into 10,294,230 equity shares of Rs.10/~ each in the ratio of }:1, at no cost to the investors Equity shares of (he Company allotted upon
conversion of the CCPS, rank pari passu in all respects including as Lo dividend, voting rights, with the existing fully paid up equity shares of face value of Re.
10/- each of the Company.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

During ended year 2014-15, the Company had issued bonus shares in proportion of five shares for every one existing share pursuant to resolution passed by the
sharehalders on 18 September 2014. Accordingly, the company allotted 43,974,000 equity shares, 8,578,525 compulsorily convertible preference shares and 100
equity shares (with differential voting rights) of face value Rs. 10 each as fully paid up bonus shares by transfer of Rs. 5,255.26 lakhs to Share Capital Account
on record date 9 July 2014 by ultilisation of Security Premium Account.

3(d} Shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company:

As at 31 March 2017 As at J1 March 2016
Number % holding Number % holding
of shares in the shares of shares* in the shares
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up held by:
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,84,22,406 28.65% 1,84,22 406 1%
- Mr. T.S. Varadarajan 1,50,09,306 23.34% 1,50,09,306 27.79%
- Mrs. Privadarshini Nigam 79,68,906 12.39% 79,68.906 14,75%
- Mrs. Usha Varadarajan 45,28,320 7.04% 45,28,320 8.38%
« Unit Trust of [ndia Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C 74.64,510 11.61% - -

Ascent India Fund III

Equity shares with Differential voting Rights of Rs.10 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number % holding Number % holding
of shures in the shares of shares * in the shares
Unit Trust of India [nvestment Adviscry Services Limited, A/C Ascent 60 50 &0 50
India Fund 1
IDG Ventures India Fund 11 LLC 60 50 60 50

0.01% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up held by:

As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Number % holding Number % holding
of shares in the shares of shares * in the shares
SAPV (Maunitus) - - 21,61,500 21.00%
Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent - - 53,715,892 52.22%
[ndia Fund (11
1IDG Ventures [ndia Fund [1 LLC - - 21,50,334 20.89%
Pandara Trust Scheme- | - - 6,006,504 5.89%

* Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer - note 3(c)]

3(e) Shares reserved for issue under option

For detaits of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan of the Company, refer note 31
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4 Reserves and surplus

Capital redemption reserve
At the beginning and end of the year

Securities premium account
At the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from employee stock options outstanding account on exercise of stock
options issued to employees (refer note 31)

Less: Recoverable from Newgen ESOP Trust (reler note 31)
At the end of the year

Employee stock options outstanding {refer note 31)
At the beginning of the year
Add: Employee stock compensation expense
Less: Transferred to general reserve on account of lapse of stock options issved to
cmployees (refer note 311
Less: Transferred 1o securities premiwm account on exercise of stock options issued to
emplovees
At the end of the year

General reserve
At the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from employee stock options outstanding account on lapse of stock
options issued to employees (refer note 31)
Less: Adjustment on account of amalgamation (Refer note 38)
Add: Transterred from statement of Profit and Loss

At the end of the year

Surplus of Statement of Profit and Loss

At the beginning of the year

Add: Profit for the year

Add: Adjustment on account ot amatgamation (Refer note 38)

Less: Appropriations
Proposed dividend on equity shares
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares
Proposed dividend on compulsory convertible preference shares
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on compulsery convertible preference
shares
Transfer to general reserve

At the end of Lhe year

L=

As at
31 March 2017
{Rs. in lakhs)

As at
3t March 2016
(Rs. In lakhs)

87.95 87.95
87.95 §7.95
1,133.24 1,126.60
2.70 6.64
1,135.94 1,133 24
490.25 643.45
645.69 489.79
16.48 18.35

- 4498

0.69 6.21

270 6.64
13.09 16.48
,731.39 1,491 88
G.69 .21

- 46.32

- 285.62
1,732.08 1,731.39
13,591.19 11,735.86
4,799.95 2.856.17
- 60.56

- 540.14

- 110.59

- 103.80

- 21.25

- 285.62
18,391.14 13,591.19
20,869.95 15.916.80
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5 Provisions Long-term Short-term
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Provision for cmpioyee benefits (refer note 27)

Provision for gratuity 1.113.20 865.23 165.27 134.70

Provision for compensated absences 329.77 256.35 68.40 55.17
1,442.97 1,121.58 233.67 189.87

Other provisions

Proposed dividend on equity shares - - - 54014

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity - - - 110.59

shares

Proposed dividend on compulsory convertible preference - - - 103.80

shares

Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on - - - 2125

compulsory convertible preference shares
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As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
6 Other long-term liabilities
Deferred payment liability for leasehold land * 1,024.26 1.316.91

102426 131691

* Deferred payment liability relates to leasehold land purchased from 'Yamuna Expressway Industrial Development Authority (YEIDAY during
the year ended 31 March 2016. The amount is payable in '12 half yearly installments' aver the period of 6 years from the date of purchase.

7 Short-term borrowings

Loans trom banks (secured)*
Pre-shipment loans 5,226.18 5,883 19

5,226.18 5,883.19

* Pre-shipment loans are foreign currency short term loans taken from Standard Chartered Bank and Citi Bank having maturity varying from 3-
6 months which carries interest rate ranging between 2% - 3% computed on monthly basis on the outstanding amount and are repayable on
demand. These are secured by way ot an exclusive charge created on all present and future other assets and trade receivables of the Company
and equitable mortgage over certain immovable properties of the Company.

8 Trade payables
Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and smatl enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,714.35 1,405.21

1,714.35 1,405.21

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the
Miero and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated
afler filing of the Memorandum. Based on the information currently available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to micro and
small enterprises as at 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

9 Other current liabilities

Deferred revenue 3,029.27 2,586.77
Other payables
- employee related payables 241184 1,702.41
- statutory dues payable 526.96 410.43
- current maturities of deferred liability for leasehold land 292.65 292 65
- advance from customers 939 7.51
- earnest money deposits 0.50 -
- creditors in respect of retention money 28.10 11.64
- dues in respect of purchase/construction of fixed assets 126.67 17.47
- interest accrued but not due on deferred Liability 42.29 48.29
6,467.67 5.077.17

1B
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10

i1

Tangible assets

Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Addition on account of | Additions during | Disposals As at As at Adjustment on account of | Depreciation | Disposals As at As at
1 April 2016 Amalgamation* the year 31 March 2017 | t April 2016 Amalgamation for the year 31 March 2017 || 31 March 2017
Freehold Tand 471 - - - 4.1 - - - - - 471
Leasehold land 2.842.05 - 12.54 - 1,854 59 18.51 - ile7 - 50 18 2,804.41
Buildings 1,213.04 3398 - 1,247.02 14328 - 20.24 - 163,52 1,083.50
Leasehold improvements 153.08 - B - 153.08 147.69 - 5.99 - 153.08 -
Plant and machinery 366.74 1893 42.73 342.94 145.71 - 3041 42.20 133.92 209.02
Furniture and fixtures 382.11 - 1016 .55 390.32 149.54 - 3238 1.95 17997 210.35
Office equipment 486.50 - 16 95 23.62 479 83 154 .48 - 4532 23.52 176.28 303.55
Vehicles 240.73 - - .66 23207 104.81 - 10.73 8.66 116.88 115.19
Computer and servers 1,996.57 - 160.09 266.61 1,890.05 1,293.12 - 22786 264 74 1.256.24 633.81
Total 7,685.53 - 251.65 343.57 7,594.61 2,156.54 - 414.60 341.07 2,230.07 5,364.54
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Addition on account of | Additions during | Disposals As at As at Adjustment on account of | Deprecistion | Disposals As at As at
1 April 2015 Amalgamation* the vear 31 March 2016 || 1 April 2015 Amalgamation for the year 31 March 2616 || 31 March 2016
Freehold land 4328 043 - - 4.71 - - - - - 471
Leasehold land 3990 - 2.802.15 - 2,842.05 7.27 - 11.24 - 18.51 282354
Buildings 1,023.72 21.52 189.32 21.52 1,213.04 12424 1.20 39.40 21.52 14328 1,069 74
Leasehold improvements 153.08 - - - 153.08 147.09 - - - 147.09 5.99
Plant and machinery 28458 - 102.79 20.63 366.74 137.53 - 25.81 17.63 145.71 221.03
Furniture and fixtures 239.26 - 153.20 1035 38211 128.88 - 777 711 149.54 23157
Office equipment 383.60 - 130.42 27.52 486.50 129.51 - 41.16 16.19 154.48 332.02
Vehicles 208.80 - 3587 394 240.73 90.14 - 18.61 3.94 104.81 13552
Computer and servers 1,722.46 - 32249 48.38 1,996.57 1,129.42 - 211.90 43.20 1,293.12 703.45
Total 4,059.68 21.95 3,736.24 132.34 7,685.53 1,894.04 1.20 375.89 114.59 2,156.54 5,528.99
Intangible assets
Gross block Amortisation Net block
Particulars As at Addition on account of | Additions during | Disposals As at Asat Adjustment on account of | Depreciation | Disposals As at As at
1 April 2016 Amalgamation* the year 31 March 2057 | 1 April 2016 Amalgamation for the year 31 March 2017 || 31 March 2017
Computer software 828 86 - 26.62 110.78 744.70 725.85 - 59.20 110.78 674.27 10.44
Total 828.86 - 26.62 110.78 744.70 715.85 - 59.20 110.78 674.27 T0.44
Gross black Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Addition on account of | Additions during | Disposals As at Asat Adjustment on account of | Depreciation | Disposals As at As at
1 April 2015 Amalgamation* the year 31 March 2006 || 1 April 2015 Amalgamati for the year 31 March 2016 || 31 March 2016
Computer sofiware 745.46 - 83.40 - 828 .86 670.00 - 55.85 - 725 85 03.01
| Total 745.46 - 83.40 - 828.86 670.00 - 55.85 - 725.85 103.01
* Refer note 38
12 Capital work-in-progress
Particulars Amount Particulars Amount
As a1 1 Apnl 2016 604.62 As at | Aprl 2015 475.70
Add : Additions during the year 501.68 Add : Additions during the year 575.67
Less : Capitahised during the year - Less : Capitalised durmyg the year 446.75
As at 31 March 2017 1,108.30 As at 31 March 2016 604.62
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13 Non-current investments
{valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

l.ong-term and unquoted investment in equity instruments of wholly owned subsidiaries
Trade investments

6.000 (previous year 6,000) common stock of USD 200 each, fully paid up of Newgen
Software Inc. USA.

1,000,000 (previous year 1,000,000) common shares of CAD 0.50 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Limited.

250,000 {previous year 250,000) ordinary shares of SGD 1 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Technologies Pte. Limited.

210,000 {previaus year 210,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, tully paid up of Newgen
Computers Technologics Limited

20,000,000 (previous year -Nil) common stock of GBP 0.01 each, fully paid up of
Newgen Software Technologies ( UK ) Lid.

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

14 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred 1ax assel on:
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Bonus payable
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Provision for doubtful foans and advances
Others

Deferred tax Liability on:
Excess of written down value of fixed assets over books of accounts

As at
31 March 2017
{Rs. in lakhs)

As at
31 March 2016
{Rs. in lakhs)

496.75 496.75
53.30 53.30
1t1.25 111.25
46.50 46.50

177.34 -
885.14 707.80
885.14 707.80
425.88 33395
12533 121,12
7.88 1738
684.92 58940
42.64 4273
11.03 18.28
1,297.68 1,122.86
285 14 268.26
285.14 268.26
854.60

1,012.54
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1S Loans and advances
(unsecured and considered good, unless
stared otherwise)

Security deposits
|.oans and advances to related party
- Newgen ESOP Trust
Advances to vendors
l.oans to employees
Octroi charges recoverable
Advance to employees
Prepaid expenses
Advance income tax {net of provision of Rs. 7,010.60 lakhs]
(Previous vear Rs. 5,430.15 lakhs)
MAT credit entitlement
Balances with government authorities
Earnest money deposits
- considered good
- considered doubtful

Less: provisian [or doubtful deposits

16 Other assets
(Unsecured and considered good, nunless
stated otherwise)

Bank deposits not due for realization within 12 months from the
reporting date
- pledged with tax authorities
- held as margin money*
Unbilled revenue
- other than relaled parties
- related parties
Interest accrued on tixed deposits
Interest accrued but not due en government bonds

Long-term

Short-lerm

As at

As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

(Rs. in Inkhs)

(Rs, in lakhs)

As at

As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

(Rs. in lakhs)

(Rs. in lakhs)

320.46 26457 17.24 -
1.00 1.00 - -
R - 17.90 888
. - 26.64 35.04
R . - 1.31
- - 117.40 35.06
2491 - 316.72 261.56
852.29 8CR.70 - R
- 89.02 - .
- - 191.92 151.49
73.62 12.94 - 14.30
123.21 123.46 - -
196 83 136.40 - 14.30
(123.21) (123.46) - -
73.62 12.94 - 14.30
950.82 910.66 670.58 507.64
1,272.28 1,176.23 687.82 507.64
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in Jukhs) {Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
225 225 - -
131.54 155.62 - -

- - 2,500.35 2.274.31

- - 68.63 68.63

21.45 - 0.67 30.12

. - 3918 32.13

155.24 157.87 2,608.83 2,405.19

* Balance with banks held as margin money Rs. 131.54 lakhs (previous year Rs. 155.62 lakhs) represents the margin money on account of guarantees

issued to government customers.
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17  Current investments (refer note 37)
(Valued at cost or fair value whichever is less)

Quoted

[nvestment in arbitrage funds
[nvestment in debt mutual funds
Investment in government bonds

Quoted current investment
Aggregate book value
Aggregate market value

18 Trade receivables
(Unsecured, unless staved otherwise)

Trade receivables
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for
payment
- considered good
- considered doubtful

Less: provision tor doubtful debts

Other trade receivables

19 Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents
- Cash on hand
- Balances with banks
On current accounts®
On deposit accounts (with original maturity of 3 months or less)

As at
31 March 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at
31 March 2016
{Rs. in lakhs)

3,169.81
1,654.47

2,353.10
1,700.00
448.57

4,824.28

4,501.67

4,824.28 4,501.67
4,866.52 4,518.67
5,277.04 4,706.87
2,038.37 1,703.09
731541 6,409.96
2,038.37 1,703.09
527704 4,706 87
17.249.24 14,731 .48
22,526.28 19,438.35
6.26 4.52
1,995.41 2,005.43
800.00 -

2,801.67 2,009.95

*Current account balances with banks include Rs. 36.69 lakhs (previous year: Rs. 41.11 lakhs) held at a foreign branch.

Details of bank balances/deposits

Bank balances/deposits available on demand with original maturity of 3 months or less

in¢luded under “Cash and cash equivalents”

Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date included under

fi

‘Other non-current assets'

800.00
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For the year ended
31 March 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)

20 Revenue from operations

Sale of products - softwares 10,946.89
Annuity Based Revenue
- AMC/ATS 7.060.67
- Support 8,026.60
- 8aa8 Revenue §97.36
Sale of services
- Implementation 10,381.22
- Scanning 1,698.67

Salc of stock-in-trade -

For the year ended
31 March 2016
{Rs. in lakhs)

6,705.60

5.631.89
6,860.20
106.90

10,160.66
1,814.05
1.27

31,280.57

29.55
542

181.40
37.70

1.90

11.60

267.57

14,808.07
593.27
498
191.11
360.91
388.11

16,346.45

12572
153.64
61.08

38,311.41
21 Other income
Interest income trom bank deposits 24.17
Dividend income from mutual funds 1.75
Interest income from government bonds 35.11
Profit on sale of mutual funds 589.89
Net foreign exchange fluctuation gain -
Excess liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back -
Bad debts recovered -
Net gain on sale/retirement of fixed assets, net -
Interest on Income tax refund -
Miscellaneous income 15.53
666.45
22  Employee benefits
Salaries. wages and bonus 17,060.33
Contribution to provident fund and other funds 609 44
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 31) -
Compensated absences (refer note 27) 228.20
Gratuity {refer note 27) 32569
StatT welfare 373.00
18,596.66
23 Finance costs
Interest expense on short-term borrowings 156.81
Interest on deferred payment liability for leasehold land 175.59
Other finance costs 128.62
461.02
24 Depreciation and amortisation
Diepreciation on tangible assets 414.60
Amortisation on intangible assets 59.20

473.50

340.44

37589
55.85

431.74
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25  Other expenses

Rent {refer note 28)
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional
Digitisation (scanning) charges
Advertisement and publicity
Insurance
Brokerage and commission
Repairs and maintenance:

- buildings

- compulers

- others
Rates and taxes
Recruitment
Donation
Ofiee maintenance
Communication
CSR Expenditure {refer note 40)
Electricity and water
Payment to auditor's

- Statutory audit fee

- Group audit fee

- Reimbursement of expenses
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Bad debt written off’
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Loans and advances written ofl’
Provision tor loans and advances
Membership and subscription charges
Security charges
Equipment hiring charges
Software and license maintenance fees
Printing and stationery
Net loss on sale/retirement of fixed assets
Diminution in market value of current investment (refer note 37)
Net foreign exchange fluctuation loss
Miscellaneous expenses

943.27

For the year ended
31 March 2017
(Rs. in lakhs)

943.27

1,244.73
4,404 38
1.378.71
493.75
43578
234.57
483.42

65.79
101.47
129.54
219.31
137.91

28.20
45439
324.12
105.09
307.78

20.00
14.00
1.00
1,278.30

6.55
37520
156.24

28.89
370.35
94.58

0.12

6.29
189.46

47.58

13,137.5¢

18.56

For the year ended
31 March 2016
(Rs. in lakhs)

1,085.87
365743
1.101.79
562.93
349.06
189.76
72372

75.62
265.88
131.12

53.72
110.82

28.20
399.50
29070

48.83
314.11

20.00
14,00
1.50
632.03

18.56
337
2.19

308.03
t48.32

3143

305.64

78.97

12.20

25.18

3439

11,025.87
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26 Commilments

Capital commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account (net of capilal advances) and not provided for in the financial statements aggregate to Rs 1,733 00 lakhs (previous year

Rs 574.98 |akhs)
17 Employee benefils

a} Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions, determined as a specified percentage of the emplayee salaries in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund, which is a defined contributicn plan
The amaunt recoguised as an expense towards contribution 1o provident fund for the year aggregoted to Rs. 60%.44 lakhs (previous year Rs. 393 37 lakha)

b} Defined benefit plan

Gratuity scheme - This is an unfunded defined benefit plan and it entitles an employee, who has rendered atleaset 5 years of continous service, to receive one-hall month's salary for each year of

completed service at the time of retirement/exir

Particnlars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{Rs. in lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
Movement in present valie of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginrning of the year 999 03 670 45
Current service cost 163 31 138.60
Interest cost T4.99 34.36
Actarial (gan) / loss 37.38 167.95
Benefics paid (47.15) (40 43}
Presemt value of defined benefit abligation at the end of the year 1,278.46 999 93
Classification into current/non-current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Grawy 1,113.2¢ 16527 8635.23 134.70
Compensated absences 32977 68.40 256.35 5517
Expense recognised in the Statemeni of Profit and Loss
Current service cost 163 3§ 138.60
Interest cast 74 99| 54 3¢
Actuanal {gain) / loss 37 18 167 95
Expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 325 69 360 9
Pnincipal actuanal assumptions used for gratity and compensaied absences at the balance sheet date are as follows
Purticulars 31 March 2057 31 March 2016
Econpmig assumptions:
Discount rate* 71.35% 795%
Expected future salary increase** 7.00%, 7.00%)
Average remaining working lives of emplovees (vears} 3043 30.48
Demographic assumptions:
Retirement age 60 years 60 vears
Mortal iy table Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2006-]  Indian Assured Lives Monality (2006-08)
08)
Withdrawal rates:
- Upto 30 years 21%: 21%
- 31 to 40 vears 15% 15%
- Above 40 years 5% 5%]

* The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of the obligations.

** The expected rate of future salary increase considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senionty, promotions and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the

eimployment market

Five year information

(Rs_ i lakhs)
Particulars For the year For the year For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended ended ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2018 31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end 1,278.46 99993 67945 49712 423 50
Net hability recogaised in balange sheet {1,278 48) (999.93) (679 45) (497.12) (423 50}
Experience adjusiment on plan tiabilities ¢Joss) / gain (35 74) 0.6l {18 20} (37.00) 130
©) (ther long term benefits
An amount of Rs 228 20 takhs (previous year Rs 191 |1 lakhs) pertaining to compensated absences is recognised as an expense

nngcd 1n "Employee benefis expense” in Not
. )
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28 Leases
Operating leases as lessee .
The Company has taken various cancellable and non-cancellable leases for office premises and residential accommodation for some of 1s employees. During the year, an amount of Rs. 1,244.73

previous year 1,085 87 lakhs) lakhs was recopnised as an expense w the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of aperting leases

The future minienum tease payments under the non-cancellable lease are as follows

Particulars As al 31 March 2017 As al 3t March 2016

{Rs. lakhx} {Ra. lukhs)
Not later than one year 90963 81963
Later than ene vear and not later than five years 2,041.67 207705
Later than five years - R

2

E-]

Segmenl Reporting

The Cempany recognizes India, Eurape. Middie East and Afrnica ("EMEA”), Asia Pacific (' APAC") and United States of Amenica (‘USA') segments as it3 primary segment based on location of its
Customers

The above segments have been identified and reported taking into account the Giffering risks and retumns, nature of regulatory environment and the current internal financial reporting structure In
view of the management, risk and retumns for the Company ia affected by the economic conditton of various geographies. Accordingly. the geoyraphical sepments have been considered as primary
reporiable segments

Financial information relating to the primary segmends is presented below:

{Rs_in lakhs)
Particulars indis EMEA APAC LUSA Total

Segment revenue 16,922.79 11,480.51 2,728.47 7,179.64 g 311.41
(11,350.02) (11,544.28) (2.142 52) (6,241 75) (31,280 57)

Segment result 3,058.90 1,596.%1 643.00 §,443.44 6,741,858
(1.177.99) (1,357 79) (330,51} (1,221 81) (4,088.09)

Lnallocated inceme 684.33
(26757

[.ess Unallocated expenditure 111731
(932.61)

Profit before 1ax 6,308.88
(3.403.64)

Tax expense 1,508.93
(547.47)

Profit for the year 4,799.9%
(2.856.17}

Figures 1n brackets represents previous year figures.
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Assets and hiabilities of reponable primary segment are as follows (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars India EMEA APAC LUSA Total
Segment assels by location 9,825.42 11,147.29 2,164,852 3.762.10 26,896.33
(7,353.40) (10,736.70) (1,994 32) (3,039.32) (23,123 14)
Unallocated asses 16,421.03
(14872 18)
Toal assets 43,317.36
(37,995 92)
Sepment habulings by location 4329.96 310291 £53.87 854.80 8,841.54
(3.103.74} (2,898 .00) (188 80) {622 80} (7.013 34)
(apital employed 27.208.26
{22,226.21)
Unallocared liabilities 7.267.56
(8,756.38)
Total habiitties 43,317.36
{17,995 92)
Figures in brackets represents previous year figures.
Secandary segment is not applicable.
A listing of capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisation and other nen-cash expenditure of the reporiable primary segment are set out below
{Rs in lakhs)
Particulars India EMEA APAC USA Unallocated Total
Capital expenditure - - - - 279.2% 279.28
- B - - (3,819.64) {3.819.64)
Depreciation and amorlisation - - - - (473,80} (473.50)
. (431.74) (421.74)
Provision for doubtful debts. 425.70 765.64 86.95 B - 1,278.30
{328.53) (259.69) (43.32) - - {632 03)
Prevision for doubtful loans and advances - - - - - -
(2.19) - - - - {219
Figures in brackets represents previous year figures
30 Earnings per share
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 Mapch 2016
Profit atter tax for the year as per Statement of Profit and Losa (Rs. in lakhs) (A) 4,799.95 285617
Less  Preference dividend and dividend distribution tax thereon (Rs 1n lakhs) - 124 G2
Less IMvidend on compulesry convertible preference share and dividend distnbuniun tax thereon {Rs. in - 103
lakhs)
Net profit attributable ta equity shareholders (Rs 1n lakhs) (B) 4,769 95 273112
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic earnings per 4,83 84,319 4.80,63,569
share** ((7)
Dilutive impact of compulsory convertible preference shares (O} - 1,02,94.230
Dilutive impact of employee stock options*® (E) £3,37.237 10.17.860
Weghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of dilutive garning per 4.97,21.556 5.93,75,659
share** [{F) = ({) + (D} + (E}}
Famungs per share in rupees (face value per equity share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic [{B)y(C)] 9.92 568
- Diluted [(A)iF)) 965 4.81

*The fair value of the Company's shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive impaet of stock options was based on independent valuer report for the period duning whech the options were

outstanding

** Adyusled for bonus ssue [Refer note 3{c)]
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Reconciliation of weighted average number of equity shares for the year ended 3| March 201 7:
Particulars Number of equity shares* Weighted average number of equity
shares”

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share

Izquity shares outstanding for caleulation of basic earning per share as at 1 April 2016 4.82,15.265 4,82,15,205
Add. ESOP exercised during, the year {refer 1o note 33) 2.28,671 28.037
Add: Compulsory Corvertible Preference Shares converled anto equity shares during the year 1,02,94,230 141007
Equity shares outstanding for calculation of basic Earsuny per share as at 31 March 2017 587,138,166 48384319
Add' Equity shares held by ESOP Trust with respect to options not granted/exercised by employees but 46,44,984

outstandiny,

Total equity shares outstanding as at 31 March 2017 6,33,83,150

Reconciliation of wetghted average number of equity shares for the year ended 31 March 2016:
Paurticulars Number of equity shares* Weighted average number of equity
shares*

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share.

Equity shares outstanding for caleulation of basic Earning per share es ot | Apnl 2015 4,79.74,440 479,74 430
Add: ESOP exercised duning the year (refer 1o nete 33) 240,825 89 129
Equity shares outstanding for calculation of basic Earning per share as at 31 March 2016 4,82,15,265 4.80,61.569
Add: Equity shares held by ESOP Trust with respec 1o options not granted/exercised by employees but 45,384,607

oulstanding

Total equity shares outstanding as at 3| March 2016 5,27,99.872

** Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer note 3{¢)]
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31

a)

b}

<)

)

Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company had established Employees Stock Option Plan-1999 (ESOP 1999) and Employees Steck Cption Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000), administered through ‘Newjen
Employees Trust' (ESOP Trust) set-up for this purpose, for a total grant of 293,160 and 600,000 options respectively, at an Exercise Price of Rs.80 and Rs. 40 per
option respectively, to the employees of the Company. Under the tenns of the original plans, these options are vesled on a graded vesting basis over a maximum period
of Four (4) years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximurm period of five and four years respectively from the date of last
vesting. During the year ended 31 March 2000, 586,320 equity shares were issued to ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2. Funther, 4,093,350 equity shares
were also issued 1o ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio of 1:5 during the vear ended 31 March 2015,

The Board of Directors of the Company time to time extended the maximum exercise peniod for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000. During the year 2014-15, the Board of
Dircctors of the Company in their meeting dated 24 December 2014 extended the maximum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000 to five years and four year
respectively fram the last vesting date or 31 December 2018, whichever is later.

The Company established Newgen Employees Stock Option Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) in the year 2014-15, administered through a new Trust 'Newgen ESOP
Trust'. The maximwm numbers of grants under this Scheme shall be limited 10 3,783,800 option with underlying equity shares of the Company. Pursuant to the scheme,
during the year 2014-15, the Company has granted 3,653,525 options at an exercise price of Rs. 63 per option, to the employees of the Company. Out of the above
grants, 1,245,000 options were granled through Newgen ESOP Trust. Under the terms of the plans, these options are vested on a graded vesting basis over a maximum
period of four years from the date of grant and are to be exercised either in part(s) or full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting.

The Company had given loan of Rs. 784.35 lakhs to the Newgen ESOP trust for the issue of shares in the year ended 31 March 2015 of Rs. 10 cach at a price of Rs 63
per equity share (including a share premium of Rs. 53). Conscguently, share capifal and securities premium of the Company includes Rs.124.50 lakhs and Rs 639 85
lakhs respectively against the equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued to the Newgen ESOP Trust. The amounts collected by the trust as exercise price on exercise of stock
uptions by the cinployees will be transferred to the Company and such receipts are adjusted from the advances recoverable from ESOP Trust. In accordance with the
“CGuidauce Note on Aceounting for Employee Share-based Paymemts™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the amount recoverable from Newgen
ESOP Trust as al 31 March 2017 amounting to Rs. 582.75 lakhs (previous year Rs. 764.85 lakhs) in respect of loan given to the trust to acquire Company's 1,245,004
equity shares {including share premiwn), has been reduced from the share capital and securities premium account with respect to Newgen ESOP 2014 plan

Loan given to Newgen employee trust for the Employee Stock option plan 1999 and Employee stock nption plan 2000 has already been recovered by the Company in
the earlier years.

Reconciliation of outstanding share options

The munber and the weighted average execise prices of share options under employee stock option plans are as foliows

As at As at
31 March 27 31 March 2016
Particulars No. of aptions* Weighl.e(l av.era.ge No. of options* Weighl'ed nv?rn*ge
exercise price exercize price
1999 plan
Qustanding as a1 1 April 20t6 57,600 445 57,600 445
Granted during the year - - - R
Exercised during the year 5,000 445 - 4.45
Forteited duting the year - - - -
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2017 52,600 4.45 57,600 4.4%
Exerciseable as at 31 March 2017 52,600 4.45 57,600 4.45
2000 plan
Outstanding as at 01 Aprii 2016 4 83 800 5.67 5,78.180 6.67
Granted duning the year - - . -
Exercised during the year 67,100 6.67 1,84.780 6.67
Forteited during the year 30,000 6.67 9.600 6.67
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2017 1,86,700 6.67 4,83,800 6.67
Exerciseable as at 31 March 2017 3,86,700 6.07 4 83 00 60.67
2014 plan
Cuistanding as at 01 April 2016 33,384,305 63 36,53,525 63
Granted during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 1,560,571 63 56,045 63
Forleited during the year 166,525 63 2,13,175 63
Qutstanding as at 31 March 2017 30,61,209 63 33,84,.305 63
Excrciseable as at 31 March 2017 7,779,170 63 288,188 63
Total outstanding as at 31 March 2017 35,000,509 39,25, 708
Total exerciseable as at 31 March 2017 12,16,470 8,29,588

* Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer note 3(c)]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
The options outstanding at 31 March 2017 have an exercise price and a weighted average contractual [ife as given below

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2017
I) 1 l .
articulars Ne. ol" Exercise Weighted No, of outstanding . . Weighted average
outstanding . average . Exercise price T
. price NP share options remaining life

share options remaining life
1999 Plan 52,600 4.45 1.75 57,600 4.45 2.75
2000 Plan 3,36,700 6.67 2.09 4,83,800 6.67 3l
2014 Plan 30,61,209 63.00 6.76 33,84 305 63.00 1.76

{All amounts are in lakhs of [ndian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

e} In accordance with the “Guidanee Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments™, the Company has valued the Employce Stock Options granted duning the
year, on Intrinsic Value Method, i.¢., the excess of the fair market value of the underlying equity shares as of the date of the grant of the options over the exercise price
of the option. Such excess, if any is recognized as stock compensation cost and has been amortised in accordance with the requirements of Guidance note.

The following table illustrates the effect on eamings per share if the Company had applied the fair value method to stock-based employee compensaiipn:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
ricdta 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit aller tax for the year as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Rs. 4,799.95 2.856.17
lakhs) (A)
Net profit attributable to equity sharcholders (Rs. lakhs){Refer note 30) (B} 4,799.95 2.73012
Add: Einployee stock oplion compensation expense as per intrinsic value method - 4.98
{Rs. lakhs) (C)
Less: Employee stock opiion compensation expense as per fair value methed 211.26 58,14
(Rs. lakhs) {D}
Adiusted proforma net profit (Rs. lakhs) [(E) = (B) + (C) - (D)] 4,588.70 2,677.95
Adjusted profonma net profit - dilluted (Rs. lakhs) |[(F) = {A) + (C) - (D}] 4 ,588.70 2.803.00
Weighted average number of equity shares owtstanding during the year for 4,83,84.319 4,80,63,569
calculation of basic earnings per share (G}
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for 4,97,21,556 5,93,75,659
calculation of dilutive eaming per share (H}
Earnmgs per share - as reported
- Basic [(BY{(G)] 9.92 5.68
- Diluted [(A)Y(H)] 9.65 481
Eamings per share - adjusted proforma
- Basig [{E¥(G)) 9.48 5.57
- Diluted [(F)i(H)) 923 4.72
fy  Employee Stock Option compensation expense as per fair value method has been detenmined based on the fair value of the stock options on the date of grant, The fair
value of the stock options were determined on the date of grant using Biack scholes mode! with the following assumptions:
Particulars 2000 Plan (Grant VII} 2014 Plan
Expected volatility - -
Risk free interest rate B.36% 8.04%
Exercise price {Rs.) 6.67 63.00
Expected dividend yield 0.99% 10 5.20% 1.34%
Lafe of opitons 8 years 9 years
Fair value of oplions as at the grant date (Rs.) 743 1541
Share price at grant date 1240 63.00
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in takhs of Indian Rupees. unless otherwise stated)

32 Related party disciosure

a) Related parties where control exists whether or not transactions have taken place during the year:

Nature of relationship

Wholly owned subsidiaries

b} Other related parties with whom trunsactions have taken place during the year:

Nature of relationship

(1) Indivrduals having substantial interest 1n voling puwer

() Enterprises over which any person described n (i) above is able to
exercise significant influence

(i) key management personnel

¢} Transactions with relafed pariies during the year:

Name of related party

Newgen Software Inc., USA

Newgen Software Technologies Canada Limated, Canada
Newgen Software Technologies Pte. Limited, Singapore
Newgen Computers Technologies Limited, india

Newyen Software Technologies (UK) Ltd.

Name of related party

Diwakar Nigam - Managing Dhrector
T$ Varadarajan - Whole Time Director

Newgen Employees Trust

Diwakar Nigam - Managing Director

T.8 Varadarajan - Whole Time Director
Priyadarshini Nigam - Whale Time Director
Atun Kumar Gupta - Chief Finaneial Officer
Aman Mourya - Company Secretary

Nature of transaction

Name of related party

For the year ended
31 March 2017

For ihe year ended
31 March 2016

{Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Sale of products and Newgen Software [ne. 6,520 77 4859 85
services Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Lid. 562 28 808 42
Newgen Software Technologies Ple. Lid 114.90 -
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Lid 24314 -
Rent expense Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 7.20 600
Expenses paid on behalf |Newgen Computers Technologies Limited 0.63 ENE]
of Subsidiaries
[.oan recetved back Newgen Employees Trust - 16 50
Salary and other Diwakar Nigam - Managing Director 8537 7319
benefits* TS Varadarajan - Whole Time Director 42,33 1588
Priyadarshini Nigam — Whole Time Director 30.64 2632
Asun Kumar Gupta-Chief Financial officer 5346, 57 28
Aman Mourya-Company Secretary 873 675
Club membership fees Diwakas Nigam - Managing Director jlo -
paid on behalf of T S. Varadarajan - Whole Time Durector 1.10 -
directors and recovered
later during, the year
Investment in subsidiary | Newgen Software Technologies (L/K) Lid 17734
* excludes provision for gratuity and leave encashment, as these arc determined on the basis of actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole
d} Quistunding balances as at year end
As at As al
Particulars Name of related party 31 March 2817 31 March 2016
(Rs. it lakhs) {Rs. in lakhs}
“I'rade receivables Newgen Soflware Inc 244516 1,861 20
Newgen Sofiware Technologies Canada, Ltd. 36820 2449 88
Newgen Soltware Technologies Pte. Ltd. 118z 54 9|
Newgen Suftware Technologies (UK) Ltd 236 76 -
Investnent in Newgen Software Inc. USA 496.75 496.75
subhsidiaries Newgen Software Technologses Canada, [rd 53.30 $3 30
Newgen Software Technologies Pie, Lid 125 111.25
Newgen Cotnputers Technologies Limated 46 50 46 50
Newgen Software Technologies (UK) [td 177 34 g
Unbilled revenue Newyen Software Ing 68.63 68.63
Salary and other benefts | Dywakar Nigam - Managing Dizector 502 607
payahle T.S Varadarajan - Whole Time Director 237 282
Privadarshini Nigam - Whote Time Director L 79 216
Arut Kurnar Gupta - Chief Financial Ofticer 120 054
Aman Mourya - Company Secretary 0.81 129
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Notes 10 the Rnaucial statenents for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All ameunts arc i lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

33 Foreign curreucy expasures thai are not hedged by derivatives instruments or othsrwise are as foflows:

3

Particulars Currency An al 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2016
Amount In forelgn Ameunt in local Amount in foreign Amount in local currency
currency currency currency (Rs. iw lnkhs)
(lakhs) {Rs. in lakhbs) {takhs)

Trade Recervables* UsD 21919 1421608 204.70 13,578.21

AED 154 62.51 Q.52 G4t

CAD 756 368.19 4.90 249 88

EUR 1 87 129.74 2.06 154 .65

GBP 171 30034 136 148 15

SAR 741 128.04 848 149.04

SGD 4 111.86 ii2 54 91
Trade Payable UsD 1.63 107.66 1.29 8693

GBP 003 245 -

EURO a0l 232 - -
Brokerage and commission Ush 10.04 650.78 798 510.93

SAR 1.27 22.00 - -
Short-term borrowings UspD 80.60 5.226.18 83.70 5.883.23%
Salaries and bonus AED - - 092 17.13
iBank balance-)ubat AED 207 36.69 228 4111
Travelling Advange 1o employees uso 1.58 104 65 053 3403

AED 06l 198 ati 2.89

CAD ooz 092 o 1.88

GBRP - - 0.0l 0.74

SGD - E 003 1.70

EURC (el 1.98 0.04 3.24
* pross of provision for doutful debts
Expenditure in loreign currency:

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{Rs. in Iakhs) {Rs. in lakhs)
Travelling expense (net of rermbursements) 208450 1,537.46
Membership and subsenpnion 230.00 18194
Saianes and bonus 366 24 30478
Brokerage and commisston 478 90 685 46
L.egal and professional 31945 401.62
Software maintenance 68 02 31.09
Advertisement and exhibttion 154.06 71.39
Rent 3372 59.93
[Jubai branch expenses 13918 124 76
thers 2310 11.42
% Earmings in foreign currency:
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Lxport of software products and services 21,363 76 19911 .61




Newgen Software Technolopies Limited
Noles to the financinl stutements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amaunis are in lakhs of Jadian Rupees, untess otherwise stated

36 Dividend remittances in foreign currency:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 20t7 31 March 2014
{Rs. in lakhs} (Rs, in 1lakhy)
Year to which the dividend relates 2015-16 2014-15
Amaount remitted during the year (Rs lakhs) 51.78 7752
Number of non-resident shareholders 2| 2]
Number of shares on which dividend was due * 51,47 340 31,47.340
*Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer - note 3(¢)]
37 Details of current investments
Investments in Indian money market mutual funds and bonds - {Valued at cost or market value which ever is less)
Particulars Number of Units Amount in Lakhs
as al a3 at
31 March 2017 | 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Investment in debt mutual funds
Tata Short Term Fund 12,73 200 - 400 00 .
Reliance Short Term Fund 6,534,842 - 200,00 -
UTI Short Term Income Fund 19,74.451 - 400.00 -
1CEC] Prudential Short Term Plan 8,60,077 - 300.00 -
UTI Income Opportunities Fund 37,48,856 - 41889 -
Kotak Income Opportunities Fund 19,438,263 - 41793 -
INP Paribas Medium Term Income Fund 41,37,952 - 413 80 -
L&T Income Opportumties Fund Direct Pian 37.34,193 - 419.19 .
IIFL. Cash Opportunities Fund i8,17,389 - 200.00 -
HSBC Income Fund - Short Term Plan - 784326 - 200.00
BNF Panibas Flexi Debt Fund - 7.70,208 - 200.00
Bisia Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - 16,94,757 450.00
Rehance Regular Savings Fund - G.70.116 - 200.00
kotak Band Fund- Growth - 465943 - 200.00
UTI Bond Fund -Growth - 4,41,119 - 200.00
IDIFC Dynamic Bond Fund - 13,66,352 - 250.00
3,169.81 1,700,00
Investment in arbitrage funds
TIDFC Balanced Fund 411,056 43923
‘Tata Balanced Fund 259035 423184
DSP BR Balanced Fund 4,13,307 440,03
1C1C1 Prudential Equity Income Fund 34,17,969 35000
1CICT Prudential Balanced Advantage Fund 13,74,705 35000
JPMorgan India Equity Income Fund 3285137 350.00
- 2,53.10
Investmenls in debentures or bonds
8 40% Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited 40,000 40.000 448 57 448 57
{IFL. Perpetual Debt Product 200 - 20000 -
1 1% Bank of India Perpetual Bond 10 104 62 -
10 40% Vijaya Bank Perpetual Bonds [Seres (] 40 - 402,12 -
7 35% National Highways Authority of India 45,000 - 499.16 .
1,654.47 448.57
4,824.28 4.501.67
Quoted current invesiment
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{Rs. in lakhs} {Rs. in lakhs)
Aggrepate book value 4,824 28 4,501 67
Apgregale market value 4,866.52 4.518.67
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Nntes to the Anancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amoeunts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees. uniess otherwise stated)
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During the previcus year, the Company filed an application for sanctioning a scheme of arrangement (‘the Scheme’) under Section 391 10 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 for merger of its
subsidiary Company, Sundeep Import Export Private Limited {Transferor Company). The scheme was sanctioned by the Honorable High Count of Delht wile its order dated 30 May 2016 The
Scheme had become operalive as on 20 June 2016 upon Nling of certified copy of the order of the Honorable High Couwrt with the Registrar of Companies with an appointed date of | April 2015
Consequentty in accordance with the terms of the Scheme:

The assets and liahilities of the transferor company and uts operating results have been incorporated in the ransferes Company’s books with effect from | April 2015 1.¢. the appointed dale

The transferer company has been dissolved without undergoing the process of winding up with effect from 20 June 2016
Pursuant 1o the terms of the Scheme, with effect Irom the appointed date, the transferee Company has given effect to the following accounting treatment in its books of sccount

The amalgamation shall be accounted for in the bouoks of account of Newgen Software Technologies Limited (“the Transferee Company”) according 16 the “pooling of interests™ methed
accerdance with Accounting Standard (AS) 14, *Accounting for Amalgamations® prescribed by the Central Government under section 211 (3C) of the Company Act, 1956 and under section 133
of the Company Act. 2013

The 1ransferee Company has recorded all the assets of the transferor company that have been transferred and vested in the Company at their respective book value and appearing in the Transferor

Company’s books of accounis on the appointed date,

The transferee Company las recorded all the Liabilities, if' any. of the transferor company that has been transferred and vested in Company at their book values as speaified in the books of accounts
of the transleror Company;

The transferee Company has aggregated all the reserves, if any, that has vested in 1t pursuant to the transfer av their respective book values as specified in the books of accounts of the wansferor
Company and cenlinue Lo treat them as such in its books of aceounts,

The balance in the profil and loss account and other surpluses appearing in the financial statements of the Transferor Company has been apgregated with the balance in the profit and loss account
or surplus appeaning in the financiat statements of the Transferee Company.

Since the transferor Company was a whelly owned subsidiary of the Transferee Company, no consideration has been paid by the transferee Company to the Transferor Company and accordingly,
the amount of investments appearing in the books of accoums of the Company shall stand cancelled

The Authenized Share Capital of the Transferor Company has merged 1o form new Authorized Share Capital of the Transferee Company,

Any inter-company balances, investments and guarantees, either inter-segment amongst the transferor company or vis-a-vis the transferee Company have been squared off,

Any impact due to alhigninent of accounting policies or changes in esimates has been adjusted against the general reserve aceount created pursuant to the Scheme

Adjustment in general reserve due 1o merger Scheme
Pursuant to the term of the scheme the difference between investment held wn subsidiary company and share capital of subsidiary has been adjusted against general reserve Summary of impact of
amalgamation has been given below

Particulars Amount (Rs. in Lakhs)
Assels of the transferor company at thear cost 7193
Less habshities of the transferor company at their respective book values o337
Less Reserves of the transferor company at their respective book values 60 56
Net assets transferred from transferor Company s
Less. Company's investment i1n transferar stand cancelled 5132
Net adjustment in general reverse {4632)

Ahgamen of accounting policies and changes in estimates
In aceordance with the Scheme, the Company has carried aul necessary adjustments to align the accounting policies of the Transferor Companies with that of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the Company has gross foreign currency receivables amounting to Rs. 15,310 75 lakhs (previous year Rs.14,344.84 lakhs). Out of these receivables, Rs 4,253 83 lakhs
(previous year Rs 3,754.91 lakhs) is outstanding for more than 9 months. As per Foreign Exchange Management (Curcent Account) Rules, 2000 read with Master Circular No 14/ 2014-15 dated
1 July 2014, receipt for export goods should be realized within a period of 9 months from the date of export. In case of receivables not being realised within 15 months from the date of export,
prior approval from Reserve Bank of India (RBE) is required. As per the requisements of Foreign Exchange Management Act, in one calender year, the Company is allowed 1o seek extension for
an amount equivalent 10 10% of the average collection of the last 3 years only and pursuant to the same, the Company has filed the extension for foreign currency receivables amounting to Rs
1.414.58 takhs during the vear. For remaining receivables, the Company is in the process of applying for approval to seek extension of time time beyond 9 months from export date. The
management is of the view that the Company will be able 10 obtain approvals from the authorities for realising such funds beyond the stipulated timelne without levy of any penaltes as it had
bonafide reasons Lhat caused the delays in realization.

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a CSR Commuttee has been formed by the Board of directors The areas for CSR activities are promoling, education, heaith care. sanitation, digital
literaey and hvelihood ¢nbancement and participation on 508 Children's Village Projects in Faridabad. Accordingly, the Company has spent Rs. 10509 lakhs (previous year Rs. 48.83 lakhs) aut
of the total CSR expenditure budget of Rs 97.04 lakhs {previous year Rs. 100.62 lakhs}




Newgen Soltware Technologies Limited

Notes 1o the Gnancial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2017
AH amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless etherwise stated)

41 The Company hos ustablished a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legaslation under sections 62-92F of the Income-tax Act,

1961 Since the law requires

of such infe and doct to be contemp:

in nature, the Company has got the updated documentation for the intermational transactions

entered info with the associated entesprises during the financial year. Accordingly, the management behieves that there has been no change in the nature of its international transactions with the
associated enterprises during the year ended 31 March 2017, Further, the management is of the apinion that its inlemational transactions are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legistation will not
have any impact on the financial statemens, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

42 Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes

Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period 8 November 2016 to 30 Decembier 2016 is as follows:

Particulars Specified Bank Notes® Other denomination notes Total

Closing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 3% 1.25 521
Add Withdrawal from bank account - 380 3.80
Add Permitted receipts transactions - 1.24 124
Less' Permitied payments lransactions - 360 360
Less: Amaount deposited in banks accounts 19% - 196
Closing ¢ash in hand a3 on 30 December 2016 - 2.69 2.69

Economic Affairs number 5.0 3407(E), dated 8th November 2016.

For the purposes of tws clause. the term ‘Specified Bank Notes’ shall have the same meaning provided in the noufication of the Gavernment of India, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of

43 Subsequent to 31 March 2017, the Company in its Board Meeting held on 14 June 2017 has proposed final dividend (@ Rs. 1.50 per share aggregating to Rs. 96.46 million out of surplus lyng in
the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 123 and other applicable provisiens of the Companies Act. 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Newgen Software
Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries (the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), comprising the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and
the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of signilicant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafier referred to as “the consolidated

financial statements™).
Management’s Responsibility for the Consclidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred
to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance and consolidated cash tlows of the Group in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companties (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have
been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Directors of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid. These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on
the basis of Separate Financial Statements and other financial information regarding subsidiaries.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements based on our
audit, While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under

Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial

statements are free from material misstatement.

Registered Office .

B § R & Associates {a partnership firm with Registration sth Floor, Lodha Excelus
No. BABS226) converted into B § R & Associates LLP Apollo Mills Compound
{a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Registration N.M. Joshi Marg, Mahalakshmi

No. AAB-8182) with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011
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b)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding
Company’s Board of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the considerations of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the
other financial information of the subsidiaries, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2017, their consolidated profit and their consolidated cash flows
for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements and other information of certain subsidiaries. These
subsidiaries account for total assets of Rs. 5,469.69 lakhs as at 31 March 2017, total revenue of
Rs. 11,839.48 lakhs and total net cash outflows amounting to Rs 365.06 lakhs for the year ended
31 March 2017 as shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Of the above:

The financial statements and other financial information of Newgen Software Technologies Canada,
Newgen Software Technologies PTE Ltd (Singapore} and Newgen Software Technologies UK
incarporated outside India as drawn up in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles of the respective countries (‘local GAAP") and have been audited by other auditors duly
quatified to act as auditors in those respective countries. These subsidiaries account for total assets of
Rs. 1,262.04 lakhs as at 31 March 2017, total revenue of Rs. 1,702.87 lakhs and total net cash
outflows amounting to Rs. 273.12 lakhs for the year ended 31! March 2017 as shown in these
consolidated financial statements. The audit reports on the local GAAP financial statements and
other information of the above entities have been furnished to us by the management. For the purpose
of preparation of consolidated financial results, the aforesaid locai GAAP financial statements have
been restated by the management of the Holding Company so that they confirm to the general
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). This has been done on the basis of a
reporting package prepared by the Company and examined by us which covers accounting and
disclosure requirements and adjustments applicable to the consolidated financial statements under the
Indian GAAP. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based upon our reliance on the work done and
reports of the other auditors and the procedures carried out on the reporting package, as above.,

The financial statements and other financial information of Newgen Computer Technologies
Limited, India have been audited by other auditor. The subsidiary accounts for total assets of
Rs. 55.39 lakhs as at 31 March 2017, total revenue of Rs. nil and total net cash outflows amounting
to Rs. 4.44 lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2017 as shown in these consclidated financial

N
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b)

d)

g)

statements. The audit reports of the other auditor on the financial statements and othier information of
the above entity has been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this
subsidiary is solely based on the reports of other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on
the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of
report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial
information of subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraphs, we report, to the
extent applicable, that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated

financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on
31 March 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis
of relevant assertions contained in the audit report on standalone financial of the subsidiary company
incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group are disqualified as on 31 March 2017 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India and the operating etfectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the
other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidianes, as described in the ‘Other Matters®
paragraph:

i. The Group did not have any pending litigations which would materially impact its financial
position;

it. The Group did not have any foreseeable losses on long-term contracts and had no derivative
contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2017;

iti. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India: and

N



B S R & Associates LLP
iv. The Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India has provided requisite
disclosures in its consolidated financial statements as to holdings as well as dealings in
Specified Bank Notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. Based
on our audit procedures and relying on the management representations we report that the
disclosures are in accordance with the books of account maintained by the Group. Refer Note

37 to the consolidated financial statements.

For BS R & Associates LLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 116231 W/W-100024

o

Rakesh Dewan

Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: \ June JO\F Membership No.: 092212



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure A referred in paragraph 6(i}() of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the,
Consolidated Financial Statements of Newgen Software Technologies Limited for the year ended
31 March 2017

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”™)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year
ending 31 March 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(*ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company and its subsidiary company
incorporated in India, internal financtal controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 1CAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and audit evidence obtained by other auditor in terms

of their report referred to in Other Matters Paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Holding Company’s and subsidiary company incorporated in India, internal

financial controls system over financial reporting.
\w/"*
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary 1o permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India has, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2017, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Helding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financtal controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates to Newgen Computer Technologies
Limited (subsidiary company incorporated in India) is based on the corresponding report of the auditor of
the subsidiary.

For BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration no.: 116231W/W-100024

e

Rakesh Dewan
Place: Gurgaon Partner
Date: \4 June QO\F Membership No.: 092212



Newsen Saftware Technologies Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017
(All amaunts are m lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sharcholders' funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Non current lizbitities
Long=term pravisions
[eferred tax liabilities
Other long-tenn liabilities

Current liabilities
Shon-tenn borrowings
Trade payables
- Total cutstanding dues (o micro enterprises and small enterprises
« Total uistanding dues o creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other current liabilitics
Short-tenn provisions

Total
ASSETS

Non-current assels

Fixed assets:

Tangible asscts

Iatangible assets

Capital work-in-progress
Deferred tax assets (net)
Long-term loans and advances
OII'IEI' non-cuITent assets

Current assets
Current investinents
Trade receivables
Cash and bank balances
Shor-tenn loans and advances
Other current assets

Taotal
Significant accounting policies

The notes referved to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements.
As per our report of even date aitached

Fur BS R & Associates LLP
Chartered Acvouniants

Firnn Registration No.. 11623 1W / W-100024

o

Rakesh Dewan

Partaer
Membership No.. 092212

Place: Gurgraon
Daig; 14 June 2017

Diwakar Nigam
Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Place: New Dellm
Date: 14 June 2017

Note

6
17
t8
14
[H]

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

T.S5.Varadarajan
Whole Time Director

DIN: 00263115

Place; New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs) (Its, lakhs)
6,338.31 6,309.41
21,133.97 16,064.61
27.472.28 22,374.02
1.442.97 1,121.58
1519 24.64
1.034.63 1,336.16
2,492.79 2,482.38
5,226,18 5,883.19
1,805.00 1.485.43
7.346.60 5,756.11
328.24 1,024.93
14,706.02 14,149.66
44!6'”.09 39!006.06
5423.58 5.592.82
7043 103.01
1,108.29 604 .61
1012.54 854.61
1,311.61 1,240.93
161.26 162.44
9,087,71 8,558.42
482428 4.501.67
2393575 20,550.59
348116 2358.24
801.99 599.29
2 540.20 2437.85
35,583.38 30,447.64
44,671.0% 39,(106,06
Arun Kumar Gupta Aman Mourya
Cheef Financral Officer Company Secretary

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 Junc 2017

Membership No: 27299

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017



Newgen Software Technelogies Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupces, unless otherwisc stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs) (Rs. lakhs)

Revenue

Revenue from operations 19 42.709.80 34,680.50

Other income 20 666.37 288.33
Total revenue 43,376.17 34,968.83
Expenses

Employee benefits 21 20,960.19 18,319.83

Finance costs 22 461.02 340.45

Depreciation and amortisation 23 483,74 436.60

Other expenses 24 14.849.40 12,395 77
Total expenses 36,754,358 31,492.65
Profit before tax 6,621,82 3,476.18

Current tax 1.632.77 864,41

MAT credit entitlement - (74.85)

Tax expense for earlier years 126.24 69.73

Deferred tax (credit) (157.93) (256.06)
Profit after tax for the year 5,020,74 2!872.95
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs, 10 per share) 29

Basic carning per share {in Rs.) 10.38 5.72

Diluted earning per share (in Rs.) 10,10 4.84

Significant accounting policies 2
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

tor BS R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm Registration No., 116231W / W-100024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Mﬂ“’}”’/ pan

L~

Rakesh Dewan
Partner
Membership No.. 092212

Place: Gurgaon
Date 14 June 2017

Diwakar Nigam
Managing Director
DIN: 00263222

Place: New Delhi
Drate: 14 June 2017

T.S.Varadarajan
Whole Time Director
DIN: 00263115

Place; New Dethi
Date. 14 June 2017

Arun Kumar Gupta
Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017

prvaneor

Aman Mourya
Company Secretary
Membership No: 27299

Place: New Delhi
Date: 14 June 2017



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{Rs. lakhs) {Rs. lakhs)
A. Cash Now from operating activities:
Net profit before tax 6,621.82 3,476.18
Adjustments for-
Depreciation and amortisation 483.74 436.60
Net loss on sale/retirement of fixed assets 071 12.20
Provision for doubtfisl irade recsivables 1,489.57 745.63
Loans and advances written off 655 EX 7
Bad debts written off - 18,56
Provision for loans and advances - 219
Employee stock compensation expense - 498
Diminution in market value of current investments 6.29 25.18
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) 138.39 (77.84)
Excess liabilitics/provisions no longer required, writlen back - -
Finance costs 461,02 34045
Dividend tncome from mutual funds (1.75) {5.42)
Interest income from government bonds {35.11) -
Profit on sale of mutval funds (539.39) (181.40)
Interest income from bank deposils (24.61) {30.00)
Operating profit before working capital changes 5,556,73 4,770.73
Aclf Jor working capital chang
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 396.66 111.50
Increase in other current and non-current liabilities 1,430.4% 1,256.30
Increase in long-term and short-term provisions 365.20 401.70
(Increase) in trade receivables {5,361.70) {3,510.71)
(Increase)/decrease in long-term and short-term leans and advances (333.85) 62.68
(Increase) in other current assets and non-current assets {120.73) (321.90)
Cash generated from operating activities 4,981.79 2,768.29
Income tax paid (net of refund) (1,683.19) (1,655.19)
Net cash generated from operating activitles 3,299.60 1,113.10
B. Cash NMow from investing activities:
Purchase or construction of fixed assets (tangible and intangible fixed assets and capital work-in-progress} and capital
advances (95512) (2,189.18)
Proceeds from sale of fixed asseis 202 5.55
Purchase of mutual funds and government bonds (8,680.24) {2,180.65)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 8,942.99 A,781.40
Interest income from government bonds 28.06 542
Interest income from bank deposits 32.62 1768
Investment in bank deposits (net) 24.08 (18 49)
Net cash (used in) investing activities {605.59) (S78.3t)
C. Cash Now from Mnancing activities:
{Repayment of)/proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) (485.49) 1,337.94
Loan repaid by Newgen ESOP Trust 182.10 19.50
Dividend paid (including corporate dividend distribution tax) (775.78) (1,163.11)
Finance cosls (467.02) (292.16}
Net cash {used in) Muancing activities {1,546.19) {47.83)
Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,147.82 436.96
Effect of exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currency (24.90) in
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,358 24 ! 867.55
Cash and cash equivalents a1 the end of the year 3,431.16 235824
Notes to cash flow statement:
1. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 1he year consist of the following,
As at Asat
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Cash on hand 6.72 14.35
Balances with banks 2,674.44 234389
Fixed Deposits 200.00 -
3,451.16 2.358.24
e

2. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared in accordance with the 'Indirect Method' specified in Accounting Standard 3, Cash Flow Statements, as per Accounting Standards specified

under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule ? of Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Significant accounting policles

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

Far BS R & Associstes LLP For and an behaif of the Boand of Directors of

Chartered Acconntants Newgen Sofiware Technologies ited
Firm Registration No.: [16231W / W-160024 /

ﬁ "

Rakesh Dewan Diwakar Nigam T.S.Varadarajan Arun Kumar Gupta Aman Mourya

Partner ‘ Managing Director Whole Time Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Membership No. 092212 DIN: 00263222 DIN: 00263115 Membership No: 27299
Place: Gurgaon Place: New Delht Place: New Dethi Place; New Dethi Place: New Dellu

Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017 Date: 14 June 2017



Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the conselidated firancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

1. Background

Newgen Software Technologies Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘Newgen’ or the ‘Company’ or the ‘Holding
Company’) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the ‘group’) is a global software company and is engaged
in the business of software product development including designing and delivering end-to-end software
solutions covering the entire spectrum of software services from Workflow Automation to Document
Management to Imaging. Group provides a complete range of software that helps automate business processes.
Newgen’s solutions enable document intensive organizations /industries such as Finance and Banking, Insurance and
Government Departments to improve productivity through better document management and workflow
implementation.

2.  Significant accounting policies
a) Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost convention on accrual basis. Indian GAAP primarily comprises of
mandatory accounting standards as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*Act’) read with Rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, and other accounting pronouncement issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the provisions of the Act (to the extent notified). Accounting policies have been consistently
applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting
standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) including accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, The consolictated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its following subsidiaries:

Name of Subsidiaries Country of | Effective Shareholding (%)
Incorporation

Newgen Software Inc. U.S.A 100

Newgen Software Technologies Canada, Limited Canada 100

Newgen Software Technologies PTE, Limited Singapore 100

Newgen Software Technologies (UK) Limited United Kingdom 100

Newgen Computer Technologies Limited India 100

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies are combined on a line-by-line basis by
adding the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group
balances/transactions and unrealized profits in full in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS-21)-“Consolidated
Financial Statements™. The amounts shown in respect of reserves comprise the amount of the relevant reserves as per
the balance sheet of the parent company and its share in the post-acquisition increase/decrease in the reserves of the
consolidated entities.

The excess/deficit of cost to the parent company of its investment over its portion of net worth in the consolidated
entities at the respective dates on which investment in such entities was made is recognized in the consolidated financial
statements as goodwill/capital reserve. The parent company's portion of net worth in such entities is determined on the
basis of book values of assets and liabilities as per the financial statements of the entities as on the date of investment
and if not available, the financial statements for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the effects of significant
changes.

The financial statements of the foreign non integral subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the ‘foreign non integral
operations’) are translated into Indian rupees as follows:-

1. Share capital and opening reserves and surplus are carried at historical cost.
ii. All assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, (excluding sk
are translated using the year-end rates.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

d)

€)

jii. Profit and loss items are translated at the respective weighted average rates or the exchange rate that approximates
the actual exchange rate on date of specific transactions,
iv. The resulting net exchange difference is credited or debited to the foreign currency translation reserve.

¢) Current - Non Current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current as per Company’s normal accounting cycle.

Assels

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria

1) itis expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

2) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded,;

3) itis expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or

4) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets.
All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

1) it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

2) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

3) itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

4) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity Instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operating cycle
Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash
equivalents.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Examples of such estimates include relative fair value of goods and services provisions of future obligation under
employee retirement benefit plans, estimated useful life of fixed assets, provision for doubtful debts and loans and
advances and provision for income-tax. Actual results could differ from these estimates. Any revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Tangible fixed assets and capital work-in-progress

Tangible fixed assets (except freehold land which is carried at cost) are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Cost of acquisition includes freight inward, duties, taxes and other directly
artributable expenses incurred to bring the assets to their working condition for its intended use, any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible fixed assets are added to its book value only if they increase the
future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.
Tangible fixed assets under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

)

g)

h)

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets comprising of computer softwares, are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated
amortization and impairment loss, if any. Intangible fixed assets are capitalized where they are expected to provide
future enduring economic benefits. Capitalization costs include license fees and cost of implementation/system
integration services. The costs are capitalised in the year in which the software is fully implemented for use.

Depreciation and amertisation

The management has determined the estimated useful lives of the assets based on the censideration of useful lives as
prescribed under part C of Schedule II of the Act and the period over which the Company expects to derives
estimated economic benefits from the use of such assets. Leasehold land is amortized over lease period i.e. 90 years.
The estimated useful lives of asset determined are as follows:

Estimated useful
Category of fixed assets life (Yecars)
Tangible assets
Building 60
Leasehold improvements# 3
Plant and machinery 15
Office equipment* 10
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computers hardware
- Server and networks 6
- Computers* 3-3
Intangible assets
Computer software 34

*For these classes of fixed assets, based on internal assessment and technical evaluation, management believes that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects tv use these assets. Hence
the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1l of the Act.
# Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease terms of the respective property or 3 years,
whichever is lower.

The group is depreciating all tangible and intangible assets on straight line methed (SLM) over the estimated useful
life of each assets as determined by the management.

Impairment of assets

The management assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that a fixed asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the management estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs to
15 less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. Impairment
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Investments

Investments that are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date of
acquisition are classified as current investments. Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value

category of investments i.e. mutual funds, bonds etc.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

J)

k)

m)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of licenses for software products is recognised on transfer of title to the customer, which generally
coincides with delivery of licence to the customer.

When a fixed price sales arrangement contains multiple-elements, such as sale of licenses for software products,
implementation services and other services, revenue for each element is based on revenue arrangements in which a
customer may purchase a combination of its services. Revenue from multiple- element arrangements is recognized,
for each respective element, based on (1) the attainment of the delivery criterion; (2) its fair value, which is
determined using the selling price hierarchy of vendor-specific objective evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value, third-party
evidence or best estimated selling price, as applicable, and (3) its allocated selling price, which is based on the
relative sales price method except where fair value of delivered component is not determinable residual method is
followed.

The revenues from fixed price contracts for software development is recognized based on proportionate completion
method and foreseeable losses on the completion of contract, if any, are recognised immediately.

Revenue with respect to time and material contracts is recognized, as related services are performed on a man month
basis.

Revenue from digitization services is recognized as services are rendered to the customer.

Revenue from annual technical service and maintenance contracts is recognised on a pro rata basis over the peried in
which such product up gradation and services are rendered.

Software-as-a-Service (SaaS), that is, a right to use software functionality in a cloud-based-infrastructure provided by
Company. Revenue is recognized monthly/periodically based on the number of users right given to customers

Amounts received or billed in advance of services performed are recorded as advance from customers/unearned
revenue. Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognized based on services performed in advance of billing in
accordance with contract terms,

Revenues are reported net of service tax and applicable discounts and allowances. Reimbursements of out-of-pocket
expenses received from customers have been netted off with expense.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable.

Dividend from investments is recognized when right to receive the payment is established and when no significant
uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists,

Profit on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is determined as the difference
between the sales price and the carrying value of the investment.

Provision for trade receivables

The group maintains provision for doubtful debts for estimated losses inherent in its trade receivable portfolio. In
establishing the required provision, management considers historical losses adjusted to take into account current
market conditions and its customers’ financial condition, the amount of trade receivables in dispute and the current
ageing and current payment patterns. Trade receivable account balances are charged off against the provision after all
means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote.

Foreign currency fransactions

Foreign exchange transactions are recorded using the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the Statement
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the Statement of Profit and Loss. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency, i.e., investments, are
carried at historical cost and are stated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction.

The financial statements of an integral foreign operations (Dubai branch operations) are translated into Indian rupees
as if the transactions of the foreign operations were those of the Company itself.

Operating leases

Assets acquired under leases other than finance leases are classified as operating leases. The total lease rental
(including scheduled rental increases) in respect of an asset taken on operating lease are charged to the Statement of
Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern of the benefit.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asscts

A provision is recognised when as a result of past events, the Company has a present obligation that can be estimated
reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
recognized at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.
The provisions are measured on an undiscounted basis.

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present abligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably.
Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resource is
remote

The group does not recognise assets which are of contingent nature. However, if it has become virtually certain that
an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the financial statements of
the period in which the change occurs.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short- term
employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus etc, are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The Holding Company’s provident fund is a defined contribution plan under which the Company makes specified
monthly contribution towards employee provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee
renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Holding Company's gratuity plan is a defined benefit plan. Present value of obligations under such defined
benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the Projected
Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation. The obligation is measured at the
present vatue of estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of obligation
under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Consolidated Balance
Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains or
losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the curtailment or settlement
occurs.

Other long term benefits
The obligation in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out by
independent actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving risg
additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measure each unit separately to build up the final obligation.
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present value of obligation under defined benefit plans, is based on the market yields on Government bonds as at the
Consolidated Balance Sheet date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations. Actuarial
gains and losses are recognised immediately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee share based compensation

The Holding Company calculates the employee stock compensation expense based on the intrinsic value method
wherein the excess of fair value of underlying equity shares as on the date of the grant of options over the exercise
price of the options given to employees under the Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Holding Company, is
regarded as employee compensation expense and recognised on a graded vesting basis over the vesting period in
accordance with the "Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share-based Payments”, issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Company has set up a trust to administered the ESOP Plan under which options
have been granted to employees.

Segment accounting policies

The accounting principles consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are consistently applied to
record revenue and expenditure in individual segments. The accounting policies in relation to segment accounting are
as under:

i) Segment assets and liabilities

All segment assets and liabilities have been allocated to the various segments on the basis of specific identification.
Segment assets consist primarily of trade receivables, service income accrued but not billed, non-current investments,
cash and bank and loans and advances. Segment assets do not include unallocated advance tax, deferred tax assets,
fixed assets, capital work-in-progress, current investments and other assets not specifically identifiable with a
segment.

Segment liabilities include sundry creditors, other liabilities and staff benefits. Segment liabilities do not include
share capital, reserves and surplus, provision for income tax and other liabilities not specifically identifiable with a
segment.

ii) Segment revenue and expenses

Segment revenue and expenses are directly attributable to the segment and have been allocated to various segments
on the basis of specific identification. Segment revenue does not include interest income and miscellaneous income in
respect of non-segmental activities, Segment expenses do not include depreciation on unallocated corporate fixed
assets, finance costs, tax expense and other expense in respect of non- segmental activities.

iii) Unallocated assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses

Certain assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses are not specifically allocable to individual segments as the underlying
services are used interchangeably. The Group believes that it is not practicable to provide segment disclosures
relating to such assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses and accordingly such assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
are separately disclosed as ‘unallocated’.

Taxation
Income-tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in accordance with the

income-tax law) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between accounting
income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from} the taxation authorities, using the
applicable tax rates and tax laws. Deferred tax is recognized in respect of timing differences between taxable income
and accounting income i.e. differences that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets are
recognised using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date,
Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be realised in
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each balance sheet date and written down or written-up to reflect the amount that is reasonably/virtually certain (as
the case may be) to be realised.

Minimum Alternative Tax (*MAT") under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in
the Statement of Profit and Loss, The credit available under the Act in respect of MAT paid is recognised as an asset
only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
period for which the MAT credit can be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT eredit
recognised as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing
evidence no longer exists.

Earnings per share

The Group reports basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per equity share in accordance with Accounting Standard 20,
"Earnings Per Share" specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
{Accounts) Rules, 2014. The basic earnings / (loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit / {loss)
attributable to equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year. Dilutive earnings per share is computed and disclosed after adjusting the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares, if any, except when the results will be anti-dilutive.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, balances/deposits with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.
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As ot 31 March 2017 As a1 31 March 2016
Numnber Amount Number Amount
of shares {Rs. lakhs) of shares (Rn. lakhs)
3 Share capital
Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 6,44,00,000 6,440.00 6,30,50,000 6,305.00
Equity share capital with differential voting rights of Rs. 10 each 200 Q.02 200 0.02
0.01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of Rs. 10 each 1,19,99,300 119998 1,19,99.800 1,199.98
7,64,00,000 7,640.00 7.50.50.000 7.505.00
Issued, subscribed and paid wp
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully pald up
At the beginning of the year 5,40,13,300 5401.38 5,40,13,800 5,401.38
Add: Preference shares conversion to cquity shazes during the year 1,02,94,210 1,029.42 - -
At the end of the year 6,43,08,000 6.410.80 5,40,13,800 5401.38
Less: Recoverable from Newgen ESOP Trust (refer note 30) 9.25 000 92 50 12,14,048 121.40
6,33,83,030 6,338.30 $,27,99,752 5,279.98
Equity share cupital with Differential voling rights {DYR) of Rs. 10 each,
Tully paid up
At the beginning of the year 120 £.01 120 0.0
At the end of the year 120 2.01 120 0.01
0,01% Compulsory convertible preference shares of Ra. 10 each, fully
paid up
At the beginning of the year 1,02,94,230 1,029.42 1.02,94,230 1,029.42
Less: Preference shares conversion to equity shares during the year 1,02,94 23¢ 1,029.42 - -
At the end of the year - - 1,02,94,230 1,029.42
633,83, 150 6,338.31 5.30.94,102 6.389.41

3(a) Terms/rights attached Lo equity shares
The company has two classes of equity shares i.e. equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share and equity shares with differential voting rights having par value of
Rs.10 per share.

Equity shares:

In case of equity shares, each equity shareholder ts eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
sharcholders in the ensuing annual general meeting, except in case of interim dividend. [n the cvent of liqwdation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the
reinaining assets of the Company afler distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their respective shareholding.

Equity shares with dilferential voting righis :
In case of equity shares with differential voting rights, each of the shareholders holding DV R shall be entitled to such differential voting nghts as specified belaw.

Shareholder No. of DVR No, of votes*
Unit Trust of Indin Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent India Fund [I[ (referred as ‘Ascent’) 60 53,75,952
IDG Ventures India Fund IT ELC (referred as 'IDGVIY) 60 27,56,898

Each of the shareholder with differential voting rights shall, at all times up to the conversion (hereof, are entitled 1o a fixed preferential and cumulative dividend of one-
hundredth percent (0.01%4) of the ir and Ived to be so distributed as such dividend in respect of each financial year or other accounting period of the
Company, in dance with applicable law. in addition, the Ascert DVR and the IDGVI DVR shall be entitled to participate in any distribution of the profits of the
Company (including, as regards any dividends declared) on a pro-rata ghare and as-if-converted basis vis-d-vis the other sharsholders.

*Adjusted for bonus 13sue

Expiration of differential righta:

Pursuant (o the shareholder subscription agreement dated 31 October 2013, each Ascent DVR and an IDGVI DVR shall be compulsorily converted al no cost ta the
Investors. into equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 ot any time as may be determined by the investors in their sole discretion. Upan conversion of the Ascent DVR and the IDGVL
DVR , such differential voting and dividend rights, as mentioned above, on the shares held by ¢ach of (he investors shall automatically expire. Subsequent thereto, the
investors, as a holder of the Equity shares shall have the right to vote pro-rata to their respective shareholding on a fully diluted basis. In the event of a part conversion of the

Ascent DVR and the IDGVL DVR, the differential voting and dividend rights shall be reduced proportionately ta ensure that such rights automatically apply only o the
hareholdi repr d by the unconverted Ascent DVR and the IDGY1 DVR

B P ]

During the FY 2016-17, pursuant to the Aricles of Association and shareholders agreement, these compulsorily convertible preference shares have been converted inlo
equity shares, at no cost to the \nvestors, in the ratio of 1:1 and accordingly all the differential vouny and dividend rights have expired on 27 March 2017. Subsequent
thereto, investors, as holder of equity shares shall have the rght to vote pro-rata to their respective shareholding on a fully diluted basis.




3(y) Termsirights attached to prefercuce shares

Jic)

During the years ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2009, the Company had issued 1,014,785 compulscrily convertible preference shares (hercinafter referred to as
“CCPS™) of Rs 10 each fully paid up to HAV2 (Mauritius) Limited and 360,250 CCPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up to SAPY (Mauritius). During the financial year 2013-
14, HHAV2 (Mauritius) Limited, exited from the (Company and two new investors namely Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent India Fund
11 ("Ascent”} and IDG Ventures lndia Fund I} LLC ("IDGVI") made investment in the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2014, all the CCPS held by HAV2
{Mauritius) Lirmited, were aequired by Ascent (670,790 CCPS) and [DGVI (343,995 CCPS). Further, during the year ended 201415, the Company has also allotted
225,192 number of CCPS 10 Ascent and 115,478 number of CCPS to IDGV].

Pursuant to Shareholders agreement executed on 31 October 2013, between Newgen Software Technologies Lid and Ascent, IDGVI, SAPY (Mauritius) (individually
referred as investor and together referred to as investor group), Newgen Employees Trust and Mr. Diwakar Nigam, Mr T.8. Varadarajan, Mrs. Priysdarshini Nigam and
Mrs, Usha Varadarajan, end Share purchase cum Subscription agreement dated 31 October 2013, between Newgen Software Technologies Lid, Ascent, IDGV], SAPY
(Mauritiug), Mr. Diwakar Nigam, Mr. T.S. Varadarajan, Mvs. Priyadarshini Nigam and Mrs. Usha Varadarajan, the investor group were entitled 1o receive dividends in
preference 1o any dividends on the equity shares of the Company at the rate of 0.01% (Zero point Zero One Per cent) per annuny on the invesiors subscription consideration,
pro rata on a (ully diluted basis. However, all the preferential dividend and differential voting rights have already been expired due 1o conversion of CCPS inte Equity.

Each CCPS shall be compulsorily converted at ne cost to the Investor, ite Equity Shares in the ratio of 1:1 at any time as may be determined by the Investor at their sole
discretion. Subject 1o applicable Law, the conversion of the Shares and the HAV2 (Mauritws} Limited Sale of Shares will take place within the maximum time period
prescribed under applicable Law for such conversion.

Pursuant to the Sharchalders Agr d on 31 Ociober 2013 as aforsaid, during the current year, all 1ssued 16,294,230 CCPS of Rs.10/- each have been converted
nto 10,294,230 equity shares al‘ Rs. 10/- each in the ratio of 1:1, at no cost to the investors. Equity shares of the Company allotied upon conversion of the CCPS, rank pari
passu in all respeets including as o dividend, voting rights, with the existing fully paid up oquity shares of face value of Re. 10/- each of the Company.

Aggregate number of bonus shares issued duriog the period of five years immediately preceding the reporling date:

During ended year 2014-13, the Company had issued bonus shares in proportion of five shares for every one existing share pursuant ta resolution passed by the sharcholders
on 1B September 2014, A dingly, the i flotted 43,974,000 equity shares, 8,578,525 compulsarily convertible preference shares and 100 equity shares (with

differential votng rights) of face value Rs. 10 cach as fully paid up bonus shares by transfer of Rs. 5.255.26 lakhs to Share Capital Account on record date 9 July 2014 by
ululisation of Security Premiwm Account.

3d) Sharcholders holding more than 5% equity shares of the Company:

3e)

Asat 31 March 2017 As a1 31 March 2016
Number % holding Number % bolding
of shares in (he shares of shares * in the shares
Lquity shares of Rs 10 each, fully paid up held by:
- Mr. Diwakar Nigam 1,84,22.406 2865% 1,84,22 406 311%
-Mr. T.S Varadarajan 1,50,09,306 23.34% 1,50,09,306 217%
- Mrs. Pnyadasshini Nigam 79,638,906 12.39% 79,68,906 14 75%
- Mrs, Usha Varadarajan 45,283,120 7.04% 45,28,320 8.38%
- {Init Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C 74,64,510 11.61% - -
Ascent India Fund [11
Equity shares with Differential voling Rights of Rs,10 each, fully paid up held by:
Az at 31 March 217 As at 31 March 2016
Number % haolding Number % bolding
of shares in the shares of shares * in the shares
Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent India &0 50 &0 50
Fund I
IDG Ventures India Fund 11 LLC 60 50 60 50

0.01% Compulsory Converlilde Preference Shares of Ra.10 each, fully paid up held by:

Anat 31 March 26017 As at 31 March 2016

Number % holding Number % holding

of shares in the sharey ol shares * in the shares
SAPV (Mauritius) - - 21,641,500 21.00%
Unit Trust of India Investment Advisory Services Limited, A/C Ascent India - - 53,75,892 5222%
Fund 1
IDG Ventures India Fund 11 LLC - - 21,50,334 208%%
Pandara Trust Scheme- | - - 6,006,504 589%

*Adjusted for bonus issue | Refer - note 3{c)]
Shares reserved lor issue under option

Faor details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option plan of the Company, refer note 30.
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4

Reserves and surplus

Capital redemption reserve
At the beginning and end of the year

Capital reserve
At the beginning and end of the year

Securities premizm account
At the beginning of the year

Add: Transferred from employee stock eplions outstanding account on exercise of stock options issued to

employees (refer note 30}

Less: Recoverable from Newgen Employee Trust (refer note 30)
Al the end of the year

Employee stock options outstanding (refer note 30)
At the beginning of the year

Add: Cmployee stock compensation expense

Less: Transfcrred to general reserve on account of lapse of stock options issued to employees (refer note

30)
Less: Transferred to securities premium account on exercise of stock options issued to employees

Al the end of the year

General reserve
At the beginning of the year
Add: Transferred from employee stock options outstanding account on lapse of stock options issued to
employees (refer note 30}
Less; Adjustment in general reserve due 1o merger Scheme
Add: Transferred from statement of profit and loss
At the end of the year

Foreign currency translation reserve

Al the beginming of the year

Movement dusing the year

At the end of the year

*Includes adjustment of Rs 88.82 lakhs relating to previous ycar.

Surptus of Statement of Profit and Loss
At the beginning of the year
Add Profit for the year
Add. Adjustment in general reserve due to merger Scheme
Less: Adjustment of foreign currency translation reserve relating to previous year
Less: Appropriations
Proposed dividend on equity shares
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on equity shares
Proposed dividend on compulsory convertible preference shares
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on compulsory convertible preference shares
Transfer to general reserve
At the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
{Rs. 1akhs) {Rs. Inkhs)

87.95 87,95
87.95 87.95
0.21 0.21

0.21 0.21
1,133.24 1,126.60
2.70 6.64
1,13594 1,133.24
490.25 643.45
645.69 489,79
16.48 18.35

- 498

0.69 0.21

2.0 6.64
13.09 1648
1,731.39 1,491.88
0.69 0.21

- 46,32

- 28562
1,732,08 1,731.3%
327.38 86.18
{104.58) 241.20
222.80 327.38
13.411.41 11,642.36
5,020.74 2,872.95
- 46.32

- 83.82

- 540.14

- 110.59

- 103.80

- 21.25

- 285.62
18,432.15 1341141
21,133.97 16,064.61
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5  Pravisions

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 26)
Provision for gratuiry
Provision {or coinpensated absences

Other provisions
Provision for income-tax [net of advance tax Rs 1,568.38 lakhs (previous year Rs
1.434.14 lakhs)]
Proposed dividend on equity shares
Dividend distribution tax en proposed dividend on equity shares
Proposed dividend an compulsoty convertible prefercnce shares
Dividend distribution tax on proposed dividend on compulsory convertible
preference shares

Long-term EPIE Short-term
| As at As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 20E7 31 March 2616
{Rs. lakhs) (Rs. lakhs} {Rs. lakhs) (Rs, lakhs)
1,113.20 865.23 165.27 134.70
329.77 256.35 68.40 55.17
1.442,97 1,121.58 13).67 189.86
- - 94.57 59.29
- - - 540.14
. - - 110.59
- - - 103.80
- - - 21.25
“ - 94,57 835.07
1,442.97 1,121.58 328,24 1!024.93
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6 Other long term liabilities

Delerred liability for leasehold land*
Lease equalisation reserve

As al As at
31 March 2017 3 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs) (Rs. lakhs)
1,024 .26 131691
10.37 19.25
1.034,63 1,336.16

*  Deferred payment liability relates to leasehold land purchased from 'Yamuna Expressway Industrial Development Authority (YEIDAY during the year

endcd 31 March 2016. The amount is payable in *12 half yearly installments’ over the period of 6 years from the date of purchase.

7  Short-term borrowings

Loans trom banks (sccured)*
Pre-shipiment loans

5,226.18

5,883.19

5,226.18

5,883.19

* Pre-shipment loans are foreign currency short term loans taken from standard chartered bank and citi bank having maturity varying from 3-6 months
which carries interest ranging between 2% - 3% computed on menthly basis on the outstanding amount and are repayable on demand These are
secured by way of an exclusive charge c¢reated on all present and future other assets and trade receivables of the Company and equitable mortgage

over certain immovable properties of the Company.
8 Trade payables

Trade payables

- Total cutstanding ducs to micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total putstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

1,805.00

1,485.43

1,805.00

1,485.43

The Ministry of Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro
and Small Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of’
the Memorandum. Based on the information currently available with the Company, there are no amounts payable to micro and small enterprises as at

31 March 2017 and 31 March 2016.

9 Other current liahilities

Deferred revenue
Other payables
- employee related payables
- statutory dues payable
- current maturities of deferred liabitity for leasehold land
- advance from customers
- earnest money deposits
- creditor in respect of retention money
- dues in respect of purchase/construction of fixed assets

- interest accrued but not due on deferred liability

3,856.11 3.264.09
244554 1,712.91
545.35 413.19
292.65 292.65
9.39 7.51
0.50 -
28.10 -
126.67 17.47
42.29 48.29
7,346,60 5,756.11




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the ©

10

=y

1

ed financial sta

Tangible assets

for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Gross block Degreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions during | Disposals As at As at Depreciation for | Disposals Asat As at
1 April 2016 the year 31 March 2017 1 April 2016 the year 31 March 2017 31 March 2017
Frechold land 4.71 - - 471 - - - - 471
Leasehold land 2,842.05 12.54 - 2,854.59 18.51 3167 - 50.13 280441
Buildings 1,259.89 3398 - 1,293.87 163.16 20,98 - 189.14 1,104.73
Leasehold improvernents 153.08 - - 153.08 147.09 599 - 153.08 -1
Plant and machinery 366.74 1893 4273 34294 133.14 3041 42,20 121.35 221.59
Fumiture and fixtures 405.70 10.16 1.95 41391 157.48 35.74 1.95 191.27 264 |
Office equipment 486.50 16.95 23.62 479.83 154.48 4532 23.52 176.28 303,55
Vehicles 240.73 - 8.66 232.07 104.81 20.73 8.66 116.83 115.19
Computer and servers 2,021.96 165.24 266.61 1,920.59 1,304.87 233.70 264.74 1,273.83 646.76
Total 1,781.36 257.80 343,57 7.695.59 2,188.54 424.54 341.07 2,272.01 5,423.58
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions during | Disposal As at Asat Depreciation for | Disposal Asat As 2t
1 April 2015 the year 31 March 2016 1 April 2015 the year 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
Freehold land 4.7 - - 4.71 - - - - 471
Lesgsehold land 3990 2,802.15 - 2,842,05 .27 11.24 - 18.51 2,823.54
Buildings 1,092.09 189.32 21.52 1,259.89 149.53 40.15 21.52 168.16 109173
Leaschold improvements 153.08 - - 153.08 147.09 - - 147.09 599
Plant and machinery 284.58 102.79 20.63 366.74 124.96 25.81 17.63 133.14 233.60
Fumniture and fixtures 259.07 156,98 1035 405,70 136.96 27.63 7.11 157.43 248.22
Office equipment 383.60 130.42 2752 485,50 129.51 41.16 16.19 154.48 332.02
Vehicles 208.80 35.87 3.94 240.713 90.14 18.61 3.94 104.31 135.92
Computer and servers 1,741.99 328.35 43.3% 2.021.96 1.136.92 216,15 48.20 1,304 87 717.09
Total 4,167.82 3,745.88 132,34 7,781.36 1,922.38 380.78 114.59 2,188.54 5/592.82
Intangible assets
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions during | Disposals As at As st Depreciation for | Disposals As at As at
1 April 2016 the year 31 March 2017 1 April 2016 the year 31 March 2017 31 March 217
Cormputer software 828.86 26.62 110.78 T44.70 725.85 59.20 110.78 674.27 70.43
Total 828.86 26.62 110.78 T44.70 T25.85 59.20 110.78 674.27 7043
Gross block Depreciation Net block
Particulars As at Additions during | Disposals As at As at Depreciation for | Disposals Asat As at
1 April 2015 the year 31 March 2016 1 April 2015 the year 31 March 2016 31 March 2016
Computer software 745.46 83.40 - $28.86 670.00 55.85 - 725.85 103.01
Total 745.46 83.40 - $28.86 670.00 55.85 - 715.85 103.01
Capital work-in-progress
Particulars Amount [Particutars Amount
As at | April 2016 60461 As at | April 2015 475.70
Add . Additions during the year 503.68 Add , Additions during the year 575.67
Less : Capitalised during the year - Less : Capitalised during the yesr 446.76
As at 31 March 2017 1,108.29 As at 31 March 2018 604.61
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1.1 Deferred tax asscts (net}

Duferred tax asset on:
Provision for pratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Bonus payable
Provision for doubtful trade receivables
Provision for doubtful loans and advances
Others

Deferred 1ax liability on:
Excess of written down valué of fixed asscts a5 per books

13.2  Deferred tax liabilitics - Newpen Software Inc (Subsidiary)

Deferred tax liability on:
IIxcess of written down value of fixed assets as per books

Others

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs) (Rs. Iakhs)
425,88 333.95
125.33 121.12
788 17.38
684.92 589.40
42.64 42.73
11.03 18.28
1,297,68 1,122.86
285,14 268.25
285.14 268.25
1,012.54 854.61
7.08 855
8.11 16.09
15.19 24.64
15,19 24.64




Newgen Software Technologies Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ¢ended 31 March 2017

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

14 Loans and advances

funsecnred and considered good, unless stoted
atheirwise)

Securily depoesits

Loans and advances to related party
= Newgen ESOP Trust

Advances to vendors

Loans to employees

Cretrad charges recoverable

Advance 1o employees

Prepaid expenses

Advance income tax [net of provision of 7,131.33 lakhs]

(Previous year Rs, 5,492.07 lakhs)

MAT credit entitlement

Balances with goveriment autherities

Famest money deposits
- considered good

- considered doubttul

Less: provision for doubtful deposits

Other assets
(Unsecured and considered good, unless stated
otherwise)

Bank deposits not due for realization within 12 months from the reporting date
- pledged with 1ax authorities
- held as margin money*

Unbilled revenue

Inlerest accrued on deposils

Interest accrued but not due on govermment bonds

Other current assels

Long-term Short-term
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs, lakhs) [Rs. lakhs) (Rs. lakhs) {Rs. lakhs)
360.05 329.25 17.24 -
1.00 1.00 - -
“ - 26.10 17.08
- - ' 2664 3504
- - - 1.31
- - 131.21 3179
24.9] - 314,72 314.94
852.03 808.72 - -
- 89,02 - -
h - 226.08 178.82
1,237.99 1,227,99 801.99 584.99
73.62 12.94 . 14.30
123.21 123.46 - -
196.83 136.40 - 14.30
(123.21) {123.46) - -
' 73.62 1294 - 14.30
131161 1,240.93 801.99 599.29
Non-current Current
As at As at As at As at
31 Maxrch 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs) (Rs. lakhs) {Rs. lakhs) {Rs, lakhs)
2.25 225 - -
137.29 160.19 . -
- - 2,500,358 237345
21.72 - 0.67 31.19
- - 39.18 32,13
- - - 108
161.26 162.44 2,540.20 2!431.85

* Balance with banks held as marpin money Rs. 130.01 lakhs {previous year Rs. 155.62 lakhs) represents the margin money en account of guarantees issued to government customers.




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs ) {Rs. lakhs )
16 Current investments {refer note 32)
(Vaived at cost or fair value whichever is less)
Quoted
Investment in arbitrage funds - 2,353.10
Investment in debt mutual funds 3,169.81 1,700.00
Investment in government bonds 1,654.47 448.57
4,824.28 4,501.67
Quoted current investment
Aggregate book value 4,824 .28 4,501.67
Aggregate market value 4,866.52 4,518.67
17 Trade receivables
(Unsecured, unless stated otherwise)
Trade receivables
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due for payment
- considered goed 5,407.55 5.819.11
- considered doubtful 2.347.26 181833
7,754.81 7,637.44
Less: provision for doubtful debts (2,347.26) {1,818.33)
5,407.55 5819.11
Other trade receivables 18,528.20 14,731.48
23,935.75 20,550.59
18 Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents
- Cash on hand 6.72 14.35
- Balances with banks
On current accounts* 2.674.44 2,343.89
On deposit accounts {original maturity of 3 months or less) 800.00 -
3,481.16 2,358.24
* Current account balances with banks include Rs. 36.69 lakhs (previous year: Rs. 41.11 lakhs) held at a
foreign branch.
Details of bank balances/deposits
Bank balances/deposits available on demand with original maturity of 3 menths or less included under 800.00 .
*Cash and cash equivalents’ '
Bank deposits due to mature after 12 months of the reporting date included under *Other non-current 137.29 160.19

assets'

160.19
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MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

20

21

12

23

Revenue from operations

Sale of products-soflwares
Annuity Based Revenue

- AMCIATS
= Support
- Saa8 Revenue
Sale of services
- Implementation
- Scanning
Sale of stock-in-trade

Other income

Interest income from bank deposits

Dividend income from mutual funds

Interest income from govermment bonds

Prefit on sale of mutual funds

Net foreign exchange fluctuation gain

Excess liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back

Bad debts recovered
Miscellaneous income

Employee benefits

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident fund and other funds
Employee stock compensation expense (refer note 30)
Compensated absences (refer note 26)

Gratuity (refer note 26}

StafT welfare

Finance costs

Interest expense on short-tenn bommowings
Interest on deferved liability for leasehold land

Other (inance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on langible assets
Amortisation on intangible assets

Fer the year ended
31 March 2017
(Rs. lakhs)

Feor the year ended
31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhs)

11,681,54

7,369.03
9.417.13
284,37

12,259.06
1,698.67

6,767.19

5,870.48
8,028.62
148.97

12,049.92
1.814.05
127

42,709,830

34,680.50

24.61
1.75
35,11
589,89

15.01

30.00
542

181.41
19.59

1.90
5001

666.37

19,423.86
609.44
228.20
325.69
373.00

288.33

16,781.46
59327
4.98
19111
360.90
388.11

20,960.19

156.81
175.59
128.62

13,319.53

125,72
153.64
61.08

461.02

340,48

414.54
59,20

483,74




Newgen Software Technologies Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial stntements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(ALl amounts are in takhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
M March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rs. lakhy) {Ra. inkhs)
24  Other expenses

Rent (refer note 27) 1,417.38 1,210.67
Travelling and conveyance 4,774.78 3,909.02
Legal and professional 1,572.09 1,350.47
Digitisation (scanning) charges 493,75 562.93
Advertisement and publicity 539.45 398,99
Insurance 523.92 457.91
Brokerage and commussion 523.05 739.20
Repairs and maintenance;

- buildings 65.79 77.81

- computers 101.47 270.07

- others 129.54 131.57
Rates and taxes 263.83 7591
Recruitment 163.62 182.51
Donation 2820 28.20
Office maintenance 496.46 424,96
Comimunication 402.57 356.62
CSR expenditure (refer note 34) 105.09 48.83
Electricity and water 307.78 31
Auditors” remuneration

- Siznuory sudit fee 20.00 20.00

- Group audit fee 14.00 14.00

- Reimbursement of expenses 1,00 1.50
Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1,489.57 745.68
Bad debt written of T 943.27 18.56
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 943.27 - - 18.56
Loans and advances written off’ i 6,55 3137
Provision for loans and advances - 2.19
Membership and subscription 487.53 402.97
Security charges 156.24 148.32
Equipment hiring charges 28.89 31.43
Software and license maintenance 370,35 305.64
Printing and stationery 91.74 76.72
Net loss on sale/retirement of fixed assets 0.12 12.20
Ditninution in market value of current investment (re¢fer note 32) 6.29 25.18
Net foreign exchanpe fuctuation loss 198.09 -
Miscellaneous 70.26 48.23

14,849.40 _ 12,395.77
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Nutes (o thve cumealidated financial staiements far the year ended 31 March 2017

(Al amounts wre i bkt of Endian Rupess, wibeas othervise sised)
13 Ceammitmenls

Capitnl commitments:

Estimmed smount of conlracts remaining to be cxocuied oi ¢apital sceoun! (el of capitsl sdheaces) and not provided fos in the financial saements aggreguls to Ra.1.733.00 fakks (previous vear Ra. 574.98 lakhn).

28 Empleyee benefite

#) Defined contribikion plan

The Eloddng Company makes contribations, d

t as w specificd p

ge of the ¢empl

amount yeeegnised as an expense towards conubution W provident dund lisr the vear aggregated w Rs. 609 44 fakha (previous year Ry, $91.27 lakhs).

b) Thfined benefin plan

auluries in respect of qualifying eniployces lowards provident fukd, which iy a Jetined contribulion plan. The

Grawity scheme « This 12 wn unfunded defined benefit plan and it entities s etnployee, who hus rendored atleusct 5 years of continous service, (o roeeive one-half monilits salary for woach year of compleled service sl

the time uf retirementiexit.

Partkculars 3 March 2017 31 March 2016
(R, lakln) (R lakhn)
Muvement In present value ol dufined benefi sbligation
Preserd value of defincd bonefi obligstion st the heginning of the yesr 999.93] 67945
‘Current service cust 163,35 LIR.60
limeresl cost 499 5436
Actuarisl (gain) / Josa 8738 16795
Eenetits paid (AT15) (40.41)
Present value of delincd benelil obligstion st the end of the year L17R48 999,93
Classificatiun into carrent/nes-current Non-curreni Currenl Non-current Curreal
Grutuity 1113.10 165.27 86523 134.70
ompenuated absences 329.77 65.40, 23635 5517
Eapense rorngnised in the Siatement of Prafé and Lors
Curent service con 163.3) 138.60
Intorest vont T4 5436
Actuagivl (guin) f loes 87.3R 167.55
1ixpense recogriized i the Satetnend of Profit and Loss: 11368 160.91
1
Proscipsl sciariul assurrgsticms wsed firr gratuity sl comperdutcd abuenees at the balunoe sho Jate sre i [ullows:
Particulurs. 3| Maych 3n|? 31 March 3016
Econetnbe ansumplions:
Discount ratc* 7.35%, T95%
Fxpected future salary incrense®* 7 00%| 7.00%
Average remaining working lives of employeta (vears) LLEM) 3043
Dresmmeraphic azspmplions:
Retirenient age 60 yeans 60 years
Muontality tabke Indizn Assured Lives Mortality| Indisn Assured Lives Mortafity]
(2606-GR)| {2006-0R)
Withdrawal rates:
+ Uplor 30 years 21%) %)
<31 tu 40 years 9% 13%,
= Alwrve 40 yoars 3%, 5%
1

* The discount rate is based on the provailing masket yickfs of Indian govertument bonds as at the balunce sheel date for the estimaled Lerm of Uie obligutiona.

** The expeeted rate of future salary increase considened in setuarisl valuation. teke sccount of inflation, seniority, promotiona and e relevan factors such & denud mid supply in the emplovment marked.

Five year infermation
{Ra. lakhs)
Farticular For ihe year For il Year For the year For the yaar Forthe year
ended mded ended ended
21 March 2017 31 March 2816 31 March }013 31 March 2044 31 March 2013
Present value of defiied benefit oliligution at the end 1.278.48 999.33 67945 497.12 42150
Nel labilty recognised in baluiee sheet (1.178.4%) (999 93} (679.45) 497.12) 21500
Iixperience adjustier on plan lishilivics {loas) / gxin 3574 051 (18.20) {37.00) 130

) Cther bong lexm benefits

A amount of Re. 228,20 lukhs {provious yesr Ra. 191.11 lakha) pertsining 1o compensated abaences for the employees of the holling company i recognised ws sn openae snd included in *Emplayre benelits

expensc” in Note 21,
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Leasea

Oprerating keases wa leavee
The Company has inken vanious cancellshle and non-cancelishie lenses for offive prenuses and residentia) sccommedation for some of its eaployoes. Ihxing the year, sn amount of Rs. 1,417.38 lakha [previous
year Hs. 1,210.67 Iakhs) wes rocognized s s expense i the Statement of Profitand Losa in respect of operating kasct.

The Ralsre mini lease | under the Tuhle bease are as followe:
Particular Annt J1 March 2017 Asat 51 March 3016

(R lakhs) {Rs. halhr)
Not later than onc year 1,024 35 934.97
Ltet Unay otre year ansd nod Inker Lhan five years 2,113 8} 223617
Laber Uwan five years . .
Scgmuiit Reporiing

The bokling Compayy recognizes the following scgments its pinnary segimeas based on beestion of its custosnors: Tndin, Eueope, Middle Cast and Afric (' EMEA"). Asia Pacific (CAPAC') and United Stetes of
America (USA')L

The ubove segnents have been ienulicd und reported taking |Mumlu\h¢d|ﬂ'm|mmumdmmu nmn dmpﬂ-kwmﬂnﬂﬂl:mmﬂwmm In view of the
mansgemend, risk and returna for she Company is wiected by e N Jition of various peograp dingly, the geographical scgments have beren considered as primaty reportable segments.

Financisl information relaling 1o the primazy scgnculs iz proscnied bekmw;

(Rs. in Fakha}
Particulur Indin EMEA APAC USA Tetsl
SepmeM revenuc 16911.7 t1S5L4 I 1,128.10 41,7098
(11,330.02) (11,544.28) (1,354.75) (8A431.45)] (34,680.50)|
Scginwm eesh 306476 IATLTH 665,62 1,701.66 105481
[ARLYE 35 (1,352.79) 3362%) (1,234.73) (4.160.66)
Unalivewiod income 1433
{267.53)
Ls1s Unatlocaled expenditun: L1134
{952.00)
Profit befire tax 652182
(3476.1%)
Tax expense 160108
(603.23)
Profit for the year 5020.74
. {2,872.9%)
Figures in hrackets represents peevions wear ligures
Assets and liabiliucs of reportable primary segment are as ollows:
{Ra. in Tukhs)
Parilculars Indix EMEA APAC USA Talal
Segiwnl asects by bocation 1969.15 [JRIEN X 1033 493343 28,4042y
{4,462.35)| (§0,736.70) @21071) {6,666.47) (2413623
Unallocated anscts 16,265.80
{14,26933)
Total ussels EEF R L)
(19,006.06}
Scgment lishilities hy locstion 4311 3,119.52 64495 1825.39 293117
(s {2.898.00) (457.55)| (141748} (TAT8.M)
Capital cmploved 7T
(22371.36}
Unalloceied lisbililios 728164
(4,730.36)
Todal Siabifitien A4ATIAS
(19,006 O6)
Figures i hraskels represeris previows year figares
Secundary acgncm i not spplicable.
A hissing of capital expendilure, deprecialion and amortisation and other h diture ol Uwe reportable primary segment are zel out helow:
{Ra. in lakhs)
Putliculsrs Indla EMEA APAC USA Unallecated | Tatal
Capitwl expenditure - 123 L > 343 1T 8442
- - (0.57) (3.92) (381964} (342913}
Thepreciabion and amocisation - [N L] 0.67 RIS AT4.58 481,74
- {0.20)] (.81)) (432.50) (436.40)
Peovision for doubiful debis 4718.70 Tol.66 133.54 16467 - 148257
(328.52) (159.6%) 129 (106.18) - (145.68)
Provision for dotbitul lens and advances - - - - . .
£2.19) = = - - (2.1%).

Fipures im brackels represents previous year hguees
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Earnings per share

Particulars

Fur the year ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
N March 2016

Profit afier tax for the year s per Statement of Profit and Loss {Rs. lakhs) (A)

Leas: Proforonce dividend and dividend distribation wx terean (Rs. lskha)

Lexs: 1)inidend on compulosry conventibile preference share snd dividend distrilwution 1 theroon {Ra. lakhu)
Net profit stisibutable to cyuity sharcholders (Ra. lekhu} {B)

'Weighted svernge numbes of equity shares owssanding during the vear for calcalntion of basic esrnings per
share** (C)

Dilutive impact of compulsory convertible preference shares ()

Bilutive impuct of emplovee sock oplums®® (B)
Weiphted aversge pumber ul equity shaves vuistunding during the year for caleulution of dilutive eaming per
share** {(F) =¢C) + (17 + (7))

| Fiarmings per share in rupees (face value per equily share Rs. 10 each)
- Basic {(BMC))
- Diluted [(AWF)]

§.02074
3,020.74

48384319

1137237

49721556

10.38
10,19

287195
124.02
163
11190

480,631,569

10294230
19,17 860

59115559

57%
434

*¢ Adjusicd for bunus issuc {Reier note 3(cH

*The Jair value of the Company's shares for pirpases of calculaing the dilutive impact of sock upliona was based on independent valuer repor for the period during which the options were oustunding,

Recorcilistson of weighied sverage mimher of equity shares for the vear ended 1) Merch 2017:
Particulam

Number af sguily shares® Welghted sverage number sf oquity shares*
Lquiry shares of fuce volue of Rs. 10 per share:
Igguity sharez outtanding for culgilation of basic eanting per share s wL | April 2016 4.52,15265 4.52,15265
Al ESOI exercivod duning the year (refer fo note 32) 220,671 28017
A Compulsoey Convertible Preference Shares cotverted inlo equily shares during the year 1,02,94,230 141,017
Lquity aharcs outstonding for calculation of husic enming per share an oL 31 March 2017 38734166 48184019
Add: Equity nhares held by ESCH Trust with respet tw uplions ol graniediesercised by eniplovees bul 46,44 984
ounstansding.
Tokal oquaty shares uutatanding ns a1 31 Murch 2017 6,13,83,150

Recoucilisgtion of weigliied average number of ¢quity shares fof the veur eded ) March 2016,
[Entticulars

Nurmibses of eejuliy shares®

Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 per share:
Equity ahanes eutsianding for calodlation of basic Eaming por share sx st [ April 2055

| Az ESOP exereised during te year (refer o note 31)

Add: Equiry 1¥VR I'rimary Issue during the year

Lquity sharea outxinnding for ealcwntion of basic Earning per share as ot 3§ March 2016

Add Equity sharen fieki by ESOP Trust with respest Lo opliona nol grantediexercised by employees bat
ustunding

"Totul equity shares enzinding as at 31 March 2016

4,79, 14 440
240815
4,52,15265
4584 607

511993872

Weighted sversye number of

4,79,74.440
39.129

4,80,53,569

= Adjusted for bonua iesue | Refer note 3(e)]




NKewgen Software Technologies Limited

Noles to the

Tor the year ended 31 March 2017

(AN amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless oiherwise staled)

30 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

1} The Company had estnblished Employees Stock Option Plan-199% (ESOP 1999) and Emplayees Stock Option Plan-2000 (ESOP 2000), sdminisiered through ‘Newgen Employees Trusl®

b}

¢

(ESOP Trust) set-up for this purpose, for & Wla) grant of 293,160 and 500,000 options respectively, at an Exercise Price of Rs.80 and Rs. 40 per option respectively, to the employves of the
Company. Under the terms of the original plang, these options are vesled on a gradod vesting basis over 4 maximum period of Four (4) years from the date of grant and aze 1o ba sxercised
either in partis) of full, within & maximum period of five and four yeara respectively from the dale of tast vesting. During Lhe year ended 31 March 2000, 585,320 equity shares were issued
10 ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratio of |:2. Further, 4.093,350 gquity shares were also issued 1o ESOP Trust as bonus shares in the ratic of 1:5 during the year ended 31 March 2013.

The Board of Directors of the Company lime to ime ded the petiod for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000, During the year 2014-15, the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting dated 24 December 2614 extended the masimum exercise period for ESOP 1999 and ESOP 2000 to five ywwrs and tour year respectively from the last vesting
date or 31 December 2018, whichever is later.

The Company established Newgen Employees Stwck Optioty Scheme 2014 (Newgen ESOP 2014) in the year 2014-1%, administered through o rew Trust 'Newgen ESOP Trust. The
maximum numbers of granis undee this Scheme shall be limited 1o 3,783,800 oplion with underlying equity shares of tha Company. Pursuant 1o the scheme, during the year 2014-15, the
Company has granted 3,653,525 options at an exercise price of Rs. 63 per option, w0 the employees of the Company. Out of the above grants, 1,245,000 options were granted through
Newgen ESOP Trust. Under the terms of the plans, these options are vested on & graded vesting basis over & maximum period of four years from the date of grant and are 1o be exercised
either in part(s) or Full, within a maximum period of five from the date of last vesting.

The Cempany had given loan of Ra. 784.35 kakhs 1o the Newgen ESOP trust for the issue of shares in the year ended 31 March 2045 of Rs. 10 each at & price of Rs.63 per equity share
(inchuding a share premium of Rs. $3). Consaquently, shara capital and ities premium of the Company includes Rs.124.50 lakhs and Rs.659.85 lakhs respectively agninst the equity
shares of Rs. LD each issued to the Newgen ESOP Trust. The amounts collected by the trust as exercise price on exercise of stock optians by the employses will be transferred 1o the
Company and such receipts are ndjusted from the advances recoverable from ESOP Trust. In d with the “Guid Nots on A ing for Employee Share-based Payments™
issued by Lhe Institute of Charterad Accountants of India, the amount recoverable from Newgen ESOP Trust 23 at 31 March 2017 amounting to Rs. 582.75 lakhs (previous year Rz, 764 85
lakhs) in respect of loan given 1o the trust to acquire Company's 1,245,000 equity shares (including share premium), has boen reduced from the share capilal and securities premium aceount

with respect io Newgen ESOP 2014 plan.

Loan given 10 Newgen employee trusi for the Employee Stock oplion plan 1999 and Employee siock option pian 2000 hax already boen recovered by the Company in the earlier years.

d) Reconcllintlon of outstanding share options

The numbee and the weighied average execise prices of share oplions under employee stock oplion plans are as follows

Partlculars 31 March 2017 31 March 2018
Ne. of options Weighted average No. of optionz Weighted average
exercise price exerclse price
1999 plan
Ouwstanding as 8l 01 April 2016 57,600 443 57600 445
Gramed during ihe year - - - -
Forfeited during Lhe year - - - -
Enercised during the vear 5,000 4.45 - 4.43
Expired during the year - - - .
Quitstanding ss st 31 March 2017 52,600 445 57,600 445
Exerciseable as s 31 March 2017 52,600 4.45 51600 4.43
2000 plan
Outstanding as 8t 01 April 2016 481,800 667 678,180 667
Granted dunng the year - - - -
Forfeited during Lhe year . - - .
Exercised during the year 67,100 6.67 1,84,780 6.67
Expirad dunny the year 30,0400 6.67 9,600 667
Outstanding as at 31 March 2017 3,86,700 6.67 4,83 800 667
Exerciseable as of 3| March 2007 3.86,700 667 4,83,800 667
2014 plan
JOuistanding as a1 01 April 2016 33,584,305 (3] 316,53,525 o3
Granled during the year - - - -
Forfeited during the year - - - -
Exercised during the year 1,56,571 63 36,045 63
Expited during the year 1,66.525 63 2,13,175 53
Qutstanding as al 31 March 2017 30,61,209 63 33,84,308 &3
Exercisenble as 0131 March 2017 777170 63 288,188 63
Total outstanding a3 at 31 March 2017 35,00,509 39,215,708
Total exerciseable as at 31 March 2017 12,16,470 §,29,588
* Adjusted for bonus issue [Refer note 3(c)]
The oplions outsianding a1 31 March 2017 have an price and & weighted average | life ag given below ,
31 March 2 ? JE March 2016
MNa. of Weighted
Particalars outstanding Exercise price average Ne. of nulm.mdlng Exercise price Weighted average
share options remaining life
sharg options remaining life

1999 Plan 31,600 445 173 57,600 445 215

2000 Plan 3,86,700 6.67 2.00 4,83.800 6.67 3N

1014 Plan 30.61,209 63.00 6.76 11 84 305 63 .00 1.76
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Notes to the conaolidated finnncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees. unless otherwise sinted)

¢) In d with the “Guid: Notwe on A ing for Employee Share-based Payments”, the Company has valued the Employse Stock Options granted during Lhe year, on Intringic
Value Method, i.s., the excess of the fair market value of the underlying equity shares us of the date of the grant of the oplions over the exercise price of the option. Such excess, if any is
recognized as stock compensation cost and has been ised in d with the requi of Guid! nole.
The follpwing table illustrates the effect on enmings per share if the Company had applisd ihe fair value method 1o stock-based emploves compensation:
Particulars Far the year ended Faor the year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Profit afer 1ax for tha year as reporied in the statement of profit and loss (Rs. lakhs) (A} 502014 287295
Net profit altribulzble 1o equity shareholders (Rs. lakhs)Refer note 30) (B} ’ 302074 2,747.90
Add: Employee stock oplion compensalicn expenge 8 per inltinsic value metbed - 498
(Rs. lakhs) (C)
Less: Employee stock oplion compensation expense as per fur value method 1126 8.4
(Rs. nkhs) {D)
Adjusted proformn net profit (Rs. lahhs) [(E) = (B) + (C) - (D)| 450948 2,694.74
Adjusted proforma net profit - dilluted (Rs. lakhs) [(F) = (A) + (C) - (D)) 4.509.4% 2,819.79
‘Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for calculation of basic 48384319 480,61 369
earnings per share (G)
'Weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the year for calculation of dituive 4,97.21,556 5.93,75,659
earning per share (H)
Earnings per share - as reporied
« Basic [(BY(G)} 10.38 $.72
= Diluted [{A(H)] 10.10 484
Eamings per share - adjusied proforma
- Basic [(E}G)] °.04 5.61
- Dituted [(FY(H)] 9,67 415

N Emplovee Stock Oplion compensation expense as per nir value method has been determingd based on the fair value of the siock oplions on the dale of grant. The lair value of the siock
oplions were determingd on the date of grant using Bluck scholes model with the following assumptions:

Partlculars 2000 Plan (Grant Vi) 2014 Plan

Expecied volatiity - -
Risk free inlerest rale 8.36% £.04%
Exercise price (Rs.} 667 63.00
Expecied dividend yield 0.99% 10 5. 29%) 1.34%,;
Life of options 8 years § years|
Fair value of options as al the grant date (Rs.) 7.4 1541

Share price at grant date 1240 £3.00




31 Relatgdd parly iranancdions

a) Otiver velwtod partles with wiem transactions have tuleen plucy during the year:

Nature of relationship

() Individusls having suhstantisl increst in voting powey

(i) Enterprises over which any person deacribed in {i) above ix able to
exercine sgificant influence

(it Key monagement personel

b) Tramsacilens with related partien during the yeuart

Name of related party

Driwakar Nigath - Managing Lhreclor
T.5. Varwdorajan - Whele Time Director

MNewgen Employees Trust

Diveakar Nigmn « Munaging Director

T.5. Yarsdarapan - Whole Time Director
Priyadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Dirveior
Arun Kumar Cupta - Chief Financisl Officer
Aman Mourys - Company Sccretary

Nuture of transactbon Name of relsted party Far tha year ended Far ihe year mded
3 March 2017 31 March 1814
(Ra. lukhs) (R 3alihn)
Loan received back Newpen ESOP Tt | 19.50
Salary and atver benelits® Diwakar Nigam - Manaping Lhreclor R5.37 73.19]
T.8. Varmlarajan - Wholg: Tine Director 4235 1588
Privadarshini Nigam - Whole Time Director .54 2632
Azun Xumar Cupta-Chiel Finuneinl ofViour 5346 5728
Aman Mowrva-Compeny Secretury 373 675
Club meshbership foen peid o behall | Diwakar Nigam « Managing Direcwor 310 -
of dircciors and recovercd later during | T8, Varsdansjan - Whole Time Director 1.70)
the year
* excludes p for gretuity snd leave ch s Lhese me d o the basia of aciuagial valuation for the Company e & whok.
¢} Cutsianding baluncns 20 st year end
Partlculars Name of related party Awnl A at
3L March 2817
(Ra, bakhr) {Ra. Iakha}
Salary and other benchils payablc Diwakar Nigaem - Managing Darector 502 6.07)
T3 Varsdarnjen - Whole Trme Direclor 2.37 182
Privadarshini Nigam — Whole Time Direcior L.79) 2.16]
Arun Kuinar Gupta - Chiel Financial Officer 1.20 054
Amen Mourye - Company Secrelary 0.81 (i)
31 Detuils of current investmenta
Inveatmcits In [ndlan money market mutunl funds snd bonds « (¥alued at co2t or market value which ever b bess)
Particulary Namber of Unita Ameunt ln Lakhs
At anat
31 March 2017 31 March 20016 31 March 2017 31 Murch 2016
Investment im debt mutual funds
Tata Short Tertn Fund 12,73,800 - 400.00 -
Relionce Short Tern Fund 634,842 - 200.00 -
LTI Short Term Ineoime Fusd 19,74451 - 400,00 -
1CH€) Prudential Shart Torm Plan 360077 . 30000 .
UT! Income Opportumtics Fund 17,48 856 - 418,89 -
Keotsk Income Opportunities Fund 19,48 263 - 471N .
BN Faritvas Medium Term Inconx Fund 4137952 - 41180 -
L&T Income Opporunilics Fund Direct Plan 3734193 - 41919 -
IIFL Cash Cpportuitios Fund 18,17,389 - 200.00 -
SO Income Fud - Short Tenn Plan . 734326 . 20000
1INP Puribas Flexi Thebl Fuml - 770208 - 100.00
Nirla Sun Life Dynamic Boad Fund 1694757 450.00
Relignce Regular Ssvinga Fund - 9.70.116 - 200,00
Kotak Dond Fund- Orowth - 4553 200.00
LT Bond Fund -Growth - 441,319 100,00
IDFC Dynamic Boad Fund - 13.66.352 . 150,00
3,160.81 1,T00.00
Investrnent In arbiirage funda
HI}C Balanced Fund - 4,13,056 - 49213
Tais Bolsnced Fud - 159035 - 42184
[X5P DR Balanced Fued - 413307 - 44003
1CIC] Prdential Equity Incorne Funst 34,17,969 - 350.00
1CIC] Prudcntial Balanced Advantage Fund . [3.74.705 - 350.00
JPMorgan Indis Equity Income Fund - 3185737 - 350,00
- 238318
Iavesiments in debentures or bands
£.40% Indian Railway Finsnee Corporslion Limited 40,000 40,000 441,57 440.57
ITFL. Perpetual Debt Product 00 - 200.00 -
| 1% Bunk of india Perpetusl Dond 10 - 104,62 -
10.4(F% Vijays Back Perpetunl Bonds [Series 11] 10 - 402.12 -
7,15% National Highways Authority of Tidia 45,000 - 499.16 .
155447 448,57
4A14.]8 4,301,67 |
Quaicd currest investment
Parikculars Asat Avat
31 March 2017 31 March 2816
{R= lakhs) (R lakhs)
Aggregate book vaiue 4024 18 4,501 67
| Aparegate market value 4,866 52 451867




33 As st 31 March 2017, the Holding Compony has gross forcign curmency receivables amounting 1o Ra, 15,310.75 lakhs (previous year Re.14.344.84 lakhs). Oul of these receivables, Ra.4.253.83 lakhs (previous
yeat R3.3,754.91 lakhy) in outslanding for more tan 9 muhs, As per Forvign Exchange Mansgement {Cument Account) Rules, 2000 resd with Masier Circutar No. 14/ 2014-13 dted | July 3014, receipt for
expert guods should be realized within a period of 9 months from the daie of expart. In case of receivables not being realised within 135 months from the date of export, prior approvat from Reserve Bank of Indis
(RB} is requited. As per ihe requil [ Foreign Exct M Acl, in one cakonudor year, ihe |lolding Company in atiowed (o xock extension for an athount equivalent to 0% of the avenage colluction
of the lst 3 veers only and purauant i the same, the |lolding Company has filed the extension for forcign curreney receivablos amounting ko Rs. |.414.5% lakhs during the yoer. For remaining receivables, the
HuklmgCulwm‘yilinllnmwofwlmfurq:pmvllmmkmdﬁmﬁmwvmmmm.mmhihmwhlkﬁmngyﬁuhlhlelnnb(-in
approvals from Lhe authoritics for realising such funds beyond the stipulated timeline withow Tevy of any penalticn as i had bonafide reazons that eaused the delayw in reslization.

M MptrSeolion135dllllWMIOI].ICSRMMmmbyhﬂwdﬂm.mwfwcsnnﬁvilh“, i ducation, health care, sanilstion, digilsl litcrecy and
Jivelihood ent and particip o SOS Childron's Village Projects in Faridabad, Acoundingly, the Company has spent Ra. 105,09 Iskhs (previous year Rs. 48,83 lukhs) out of the kil CSR expensliture
Pudget of Rs, 97.04 lakhs (previous year Rs. 100,62 lakha).

35 The Company has ished » comprehensive system of mai of infi ion and dh a3 required by the transfer pricing legialalion under seclions 32-92F of the Inoomo-tax Act, 1961, Since the law
requires exisetoe af such i fon and d jon 1 he p in nalupe, the group is in the process of wsdating the & ion for the i ional ions entered inlo with the
waocistied onlerprises during the financisl year and expects such records w0 he in existenor [dest by Noveniber 2017, ax roquired under Law. The menagement is of the opinion that it inkenational transactions are
ul erm's kength #o than the aforesaid kgalution will pot have any wrpect an the lidated finsncisl perticularly om the snoun of 1ax expense s that of provision for taxalion

36 Additional information pursasnd to pack 2 of general } for the preparstion of lidated financial ssiemenis.

Al-March-2917
Name of Company Net Aszets (Tutn] Assets minus Total Liability) Share n Prefit or Lass
na n % of consalidated mat Nel Asects 32 % of comsalilated Prafi/{Lam)
aasets iRninlakhe) ! orufterios (Ra, §n lakhn)
Parent Company
Newgea Soflware Technologics Limiled B4 06% 2309151 95 60%, 479994
fmdizn Subsidiaries
Newgen Computer Technologics Limited 0.0% 5368 007% 141
Forelgn Subaldlaries
Newgen Scftware ine 11.61% 1.189.20 15301
Newgen Softwere Caads Lid 1.64% 44329 19.93
Newgen Soflware Technokogies (UK) Limited |.48% 40752 12.94
Newgen Sellvare Prg. Ltd 102% 179.07 .
— 31-March 2016
» of Campany Irt Aasets {Tatal Aascis minus Tetal Liabllil Share ln Profi or Lo
as 4 Yo of cansalidaled net Net Ansets %% of conaelidaied Prafit/{La:
T [R5, I nkhsb nrofit or losa {Ra in lal

Parent Company
Newgen Software Technologics Limited 36, 19%, 19.281.314 F94I% 135617
Indian Subsidiaries
Newgen Computer Tochnologien Limited 0.21% 5027 0.18% 5.2
Forvign Subsldinries
Newgen Sollware [nc 11 24%| 151480 0.64% 1843
Mowgen Software Canada Lid 1.42% nso0 043% (12.31)
Newgen) Softwarg Pie Ll 0.93%) 20764 0.19% 3.36

Ji8A0% 2137402 199,005 127033

3T Disclosure on specified bank notes

Details of Specificd Bank Nows {SBN) behl and transacted during the period 8 Navember 2016 to 30 December 2015 is s Rollow:

Parisulrs Spocified Bank Nater Diher depominathon metes Total

Clesing canh in hand ua on § November 2016 3.5 1.25 5.21

Add: Withdrewal from bank ecovunl - 180 X
Add Mermilted receipla trasactions - LM 1.4

Lews: Parmined payments transactions - 160 160
Less: Amount depositcd in banks scoounts 3.9 . 1%

Cloning ¢ashin hatd an on 30 Docember 2016 ' - 160 269

* Fox the purpooed of thia clause, the serm "Specified Bank Notes' shall have the seme mesning provided in the motification of the Government of Indis, in the Ministry of Finance, Department of Econotnic AfTaitn
monber 8.0. 3407(E), deled 8th Nevernber 2016.

39 Subsequent 1031 March 2017, e | lolding Company in itx Bownd Meeting held oo 4 June 2017 has proposed final dividend @ Ra 1,30 per shice aggegating 1o Re. %646 million oul of surphus Iying in the
Statemend of Profil sid Lows of the Holding Company in sccordance wilh the provisions of Scction 123 snd otler applicable provisions of (he Companies Acl, 2013,

39 Previoo year's figures have been re-gruuped/re-acrnijed where nocessary to oonform 1o custe year's claasification.
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